
MEETING: PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION PANEL

DATE: Friday 17th May, 2019

TIME: 10.00 am

VENUE: Town Hall, Bootle with video conferencing at Southport Town 
Hall

DECISION MAKER: PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION 
PANEL

Councillor Byrom
Councillor Doyle
Councillor Lappin
Councillor Lynne Thompson

COMMITTEE OFFICER: Jayne Vincent
Consultation and Engagement Lead

Telephone: 0151 934 3840
Fax:
E-mail: Jayne.vincentl@sefton.gov.uk

The Cabinet is responsible for making what are known as Key Decisions, 
which will be notified on the Forward Plan.  Items marked with an * on the 
agenda involve Key Decisions
A key decision, as defined in the Council’s Constitution, is: -
● any Executive decision that is not in the Annual Revenue Budget and 

Capital Programme approved by the Council and which requires a gross 
budget expenditure, saving or virement of more than £100,000 or more 
than 2% of a Departmental budget, whichever is the greater

● any Executive decision where the outcome will have a significant impact 
on a significant number of people living or working in two or more Wards

If you have any special needs that may require arrangements to 
facilitate your attendance at this meeting, please contact the 
Committee Officer named above, who will endeavour to assist.

Public Document Pack



A G E N D A
Items marked with an * involve key decisions

Item 
No.

Subject/Author(s) Wards Affected

 
 1.  Welcome & Apologies

 2.  Declarations of Interest
Members are requested at a meeting where a 
disclosable pecuniary interest or personal 
interest arises, which is not already included in 
their Register of Members' Interests, to declare 
any interests that relate to an item on the 
agenda.

Where a Member discloses a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest, he/she must withdraw from 
the meeting room, including from the public 
gallery, during the whole consideration of any 
item of business in which he/she has an 
interest, except where he/she is permitted to 
remain as a result of a grant of a dispensation.

Where a Member discloses a personal interest 
he/she must seek advice from the Monitoring 
Officer or staff member representing the 
Monitoring Officer to determine whether the 
Member should withdraw from the meeting 
room, including from the public gallery, during 
the whole consideration of any item of business 
in which he/she has an interest or whether the 
Member can remain in the meeting or remain in 
the meeting and vote on the relevant decision.

 3.  Minutes of meeting held on Monday 15th 
March 2019

(Pages 5 - 
12)

 4.  Matters Arising

 5.  Proposal to undertake Public Engagement 
and Consultation Activity - Canal and River 
Trust Draft Vision

(Pages 13 - 
42)

 6.  Proposal to undertake Public Engagement 
and Consultation Activity - 0-19 Integrated 
Service

(Pages 43 - 
56)

 7.  Proposal to undertake Public Engagement 
and Consultation Activity - Transportation & 

(Pages 57 - 
90)



Highway Infrastructure Services

 8.  Proposal to undertake Public Engagement 
and Consultation Activity - SEND Joint 
Commissioning Strategy - Co-production 
Framework and Engagement Process

(Pages 91 - 
120)

 9.  Proposal to undertake Public Engagement 
and Consultation Activity -Engagement to 
inform Sefton's Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy 2020-2025 - Update Report - Update 
Report 

(Pages 121 - 
130)

 10.  Proposal to undertake Public Engagement 
and Consultation Activity - Sefton Place 
Plan (Report to follow electronically) - ITEM 
WITHDRAWN

 11.  The Journey to Participation -  Presentation

 12.  Any Other Business

 13.  Date of Next Meeting: Friday 12th July, 
10.00am at Bootle Town Hall



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 
 

Meeting held on Friday 15 March 2019 
Commencing at 10.00 a.m. in the Committee Room at Bootle Town Hall. 

 
 
 Present:  
  
Councillor Paulette Lappin (Chair) 
Councillor Leslie Byrom  
Councillor Lynne Thompson 
Dr Mike Homfray – VCF Sector & Equalities Representative 
Lyn Cooke – Communications & Engagement Manager, South Sefton and Southport 
& Formby CCG 
Wendy Anderson – Healthwatch Sefton 
Jayne Vincent, Consultation & Engagement Lead 
Dan Grice, Communications and Engagement Manager, Sefton Health & Care 
Transformation Partnership 
Andrew Dunsmore, Highways and Public Protection 
Andrea O’Connor, Planning Department 
Heather Jago, Regeneration Team 
Tara Scott, Strategic Support 
Helen Armitage, Public Health 
Rachel Northover, Coast & Countryside Officer, Green Sefton 
 
Also in attendance:  Ms Geralyn Lennon, member of the public 
 
 
 

Apologies: 
 
Councillor Mhairi Doyle, MBE 
Councillor Janis Blackburne (Substitute Member) 
Nigel Bellamy - VCF Sector Representative 
Wendy Kenyon – Merseyside Fire & Rescue Service – Diversity, Engagement & 
Consultation Manager MFRA 
 
 
 

 

 

Action 

1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Blackburne 
and Doyle, Nigel Bellamy, and Wendy Kenyon.  

The Panel would like to pass on good wishes for a speedy recovery 
to Nigel Bellamy 

 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 

 

 

Jayne Vincent 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

2 
 

 

 

Action 

No declarations of any disclosable pecuniary interests or personal 
interests were received. 

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  

RESOLVED: 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 15 February 2019 are 
accurate. 
No matters arising.  

 

5. PROPOSAL TO UNDERTAKE PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT AND 

CONSULTATION ACTIVITY – CROSBY COASTAL PARK 

MASTER PLAN 

The Panel considered the report of the Principal Coast & 

Countryside Officer which informed the Panel of the proposal to 

engage and consult (in a ‘single consultation’) the following 

initiatives: 

• Draft Crosby Coastal Park Masterplan – land use planning 
and development 

• Vision for Crosby Coastal Park – Green Sefton’s stewardship 
of the park 

• ‘Pre-application’ consultation on Crosby Coastal Defence 
Scheme. 
 

The report highlighted that at the meeting of the Public 

Engagement and Consultation Panel on the 26th November 2018, 

the Panel considered a report on the plan to develop a consultation 

plan for the Crosby Coastal Sea Defences and the Panel agreed 

that there was a need to coordinate these proposals with the 

Supplementary Planning Document for the park. 

As Sefton Council was planning to have several consultations for 

the same location, it was felt that there was a need to coordinate 

the proposals to allow local residents to easily make the 

connections between these initiatives and to avoid consultation 

fatigue.    

The consultation on the Masterplan will commence in May and prior 

to that a pre/soft consultation process will be undertaken with 

statutory bodies and key stakeholders (such as Natural England) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



 

3 
 

 

 

Action 

during March and April to inform the consultation material and 

process. 

The proforma included the target audiences and the methodology 

to engage the audience and was supported by a communications 

and engagement plan. 

Dr M Homfray, VCF Sector and Equalities Representative, 

suggested that social media could be used to engage with the wide 

number of groups who have an interest in the Coast and the 

geographically area. 

Cllr P Lappin agreed that there are several discussion groups who 

have an interest and volunteer in the area, for example, Friend and 

Coastal groups, Community Associations. 

RESOLVED: That 

 

(1) the engagement and consultation plan for the proposed 

consultation and engagement plan for the Crosby Coastal 

Park/Vision be considered and agreed; and  

(2) the officers be requested to return to the Panel to provide details 

of their feedback and evaluation resulting from the above 

consultation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Rachel 
Northover 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Rachel 
Northover 

6. PROPOSAL TO UNDERTAKE PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT AND 

CONSULTATION ACTIVITY – A565 CROSBY ROAD NORTH 

AND GREAT GEORGES ROAD JUNCTION IMPROVEMENTS 

AND CYCLE ROUTE. 

The Panel considered the report of the Team Leader Regulatory 

and Compliance of Highways and Public Protection which informed 

Members of the consultation plans being developed regarding the 

A565 Crosby Road North and Great Georges Road Junction 

Improvements and Cycle Route.  

The report indicated that proposals have been developed for 

improvements to the junction of Great Georges Road and the A565 

Crosby Road North.  This would include the restrictions on certain 

movements with the intention of improving the traffic flow, 

improving the crossing facilities and reducing accidents at the 

junction.  The proposals also include the introduction of a cycle lane 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



 

4 
 

 

 

Action 

within Great Georges Road to create a link within Crosby Marine 

Park and the junction. 

The consultation has been designed with the Church Ward Elected 

Members and will promote the benefits to the scheme for road user, 

residents, cyclists and the wider public and will also provide an 

opportunity to hear views about the proposed scheme.   

It is proposed to commence the consultation on the 7th May and 

end on the 7th June 2019. 

The consultation proforma outlines the target audience and the 

proposed methodology and is supported by a communications 

plan. 

L. Cooke, CCG representative asked if the consultation plans are 

being worked up with Ward Cllrs to help reach businesses and 

residents who might be adversely affected? 

A. Dunsmore replied that this is the case and that a boundary is 

being drawn up to help identify who might be affected by the 

proposal. 

Cllr P. Lappin suggested to contact the Church Ward Forum and 

other groups in the area. 

Dr M Homfray asked how far is the letter drop for residents and 

businesses as in the nearby vicinity there are instances where 

cyclists are riding on the pavement and local residents would like 

to give their views on the proposal.  Dr M. Homfray advised that 

pedestrians and cyclists don’t always have the same views and it 

is important to capture all views. 

Cllr P. Lappin advised that it is both an education and enforcement 

issue. 

A. Dunsmore advised that they will be careful to work out the 
detail and the design of the consultation with Ward Cllrs. 

 

Cllr L. Byrom asked whether there had been discussions with 

Crosby Police Station. 

A. Dunsmore responded to say that no discussions had taken 
place yet, but they intend to talk to both the police and the fire 
service in the locality. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Andrew 
Dunsmore 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Andrew 
Dunsmore 

 

 

 

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



 

5 
 

 

 

Action 

J. Vincent suggested that there should be a map of the junction 

with the information and at the engagement sessions. 

J. Vincent suggested that although there was a ‘preferred option’ 

all information about any options that have been discounted 

should be available for public information, with reasons as to why 

they are deemed not suitable. 

A. Dunsmore is preparing a briefing note and will share with J. 

Vincent. 

J. Vincent advised that the survey for completion should have the 

GDPR privacy notice and consent prior to the questions.  Jayne to 

send Andrew the GDPR Guidance. 

 
RESOLVED: That 

(1) the public engagement and consultation plan for the A565 

Crosby Road North and Great Georges Road Junction 

Improvements and Cycle Route be considered and agreed; and  

(2) the officers be requested to return to the Panel to provide details 

of their feedback and evaluation resulting from the above 

consultation.  

 

 

 

 

 

Andrew 
Dunsmore 

 

Jayne Vincent 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7. PROPOSAL TO UNDERTAKE PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT AND 

CONSULTATION ACTIVITY – TO INFORM SEFTON’S HEALTH 

AND WELLBEING STRATEGY 2020-2025 AND OTHER 

RELEVANT STRATGY/POLICY DEVELOPMENTS SUCH AS 

THE CHILDREN’S PLAN AND THE NHS LONG TERM PLAN. 

The Panel considered the report of the Public Health Consultant on 

behalf of the Sefton Health and Wellbeing Board Strategy Group 

which informed Members of the consultation plans being 

developed regarding Sefton’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2020-

2025.  

The report indicated that proposals have been developed as part 

of the refresh of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy, which along 

with the Sefton Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA), the 

Health and Wellbeing Board have a statutory duty to produce.  An 

updated version of the JSNA was published in 2018. 

The Panel were informed that a sub-group of the Health and 

Wellbeing Board has been established to oversee development of 

the new strategy and to develop a collaborative approach to the 

engagement, which will affirm a common purpose, reduce 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



 

6 
 

 

 

Action 

duplication and improve the experience of consultees.  Core 

membership comprises senior representatives from Sefton Council 

Public Health, Commissioning and Social Care, Healthwatch 

Sefton, Sefton CVS and NHS England. 

The proforma included information on the engagement channels 

and methods and how the engagement programme will consider 

and mitigate any inclusion and access barriers.  A timetable from 

March – Sept 2019 outlined the intended process. 

Dr M. Homfray thought that although a streamlined consultation 

document could be completed, he thought that the engagement 

with the equalities groups could mirror the consultation in 2012, but 

also be strengthened, in that there was specific engagement and 

reporting for all the protected characteristics. 

L. Cooke felt that working together with the Clinical Commissioning 

Groups is important for residents and will have access to feedback 

from other engagement events that could support the process. 

L. Cooke would like to see how the questionnaire is developed and 

how to talk about the three plans in a way that makes it easy as 

possible for consultees to participate. 

L. Cooke asked for the plans to also be shared through the 

Engaging Patients Experience Group (EPEG). 

J. Vincent agreed that the organisations who attend EPEG can 

contribute to the plans and with the engagement process. 

W. Anderson confirmed that Healthwatch Sefton will be involved in 

this work and there is opportunity to link up with the Healthwatch 

Champion Groups. 

J. Vincent mentioned that she had discussed the intention to 

consult on the Health and Wellbeing Strategy at the Improving 

Information Group earlier in the week and they advised that the 

materials should also be in other accessible formats, that People 

First, SPOC Older People’s Forum and the Sefton Visually 

Impaired group should be engaged with.  They also suggested that 

there will be a lot of feedback from the 2030 Vision consultation 

and the Local Plan that should be considered. 

Cllr p. Lappin asked for the questionnaire and other materials to be 

brought back to the meeting of the Panel in May. 

RESOLVED: That 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Helen Armitage 

 

 

 

L. Cooke 

 

 

 

Helen Armitage 

 

Helen Armitage 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Helen Armitage 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Helen Armitage 

Page 10

Agenda Item 3



 

7 
 

 

 

Action 

(1) the public engagement and consultation plan for the Sefton 

Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2020 – 2025 be considered and 

agreed; and  

(2) the officers be requested to return to the Panel to provide details 

of their feedback and evaluation resulting from the above 

consultation. 

 

8. PROPOSAL TO UNDERTAKE PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT AND 

CONSULTATION ACTIVITY – FUTURE HIGH STREET FUND – 

VERBAL UPDATE. 

The Panel considered a verbal report of the Strategic 

Commissioner, Regeneration and Housing on which informed 

Members of the opportunity for the Council to submit a bid to the 

Future High Street Fund. 

It was reported that the Future High Street Fund was part of the 

Government’s budget in 2018; to develop and support high street’s 

in decline.  Local Authorities can identify up to 2 town centres to be 

considered for the fund.  After reviewing the bidding criteria, the 

Council has agreed to apply to the fund for Southport Town Centre 

and Crosby Village. 

It was reported that it is a two-stage process, with the first stage 

being an expression of interest by the 22nd March 2019, which 

should include some idea for the Vision and Strategy of the town 

centres.  The work undertaken as part of the Town Centre 

Investment Frameworks and the Vision 2030 will support the 

applications.  If successful at stage 1, there will be between 6 – 12 

months to prepare and develop the bid for stage 2. 

The Panel were asked about how to move forward effectively? 

Cllr P. Lappin advised that any consultation plan for Stage 2 should 

be developed and be presented to the Panel for consideration and 

advised to liaise with the Consultation and Engagement Lead on 

this. 

Cllr P. Lappin thought that using the information from the 

Frameworks should help but also the feedback from the Sefton 

Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Heather Jago 

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



 

8 
 

 

 

Action 

Dr M. Homfray advised that it was important to not ‘reinvent the 

wheel’ – that the existing information and feedback should be used. 

Asking people, the same information again is not helpful. 

J. Vincent agreed that there was a lot of information and feedback 

from the Investment Frameworks and 2030 Vision and to consider 

looking at what needs further exploration and to re-engage with the 

groups who took part and identify where there might be gaps – for 

example young people. 

RESOLVED: That 

(1) the officers be requested to return to the Panel to provide details 

of their consultation and engagement plans for Stage 2, if 

successful at Stage 1. 

9. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

EConsultation Tender 

J. Vincent reported that the Council has just completed a tender 

process for the online eConsultation system and associated 

support.  A deployment process is being undertaken and the new 

system will be in place from the 1st April, with training being 

provided for 10 staff. 

Dr M. Homfray asked for a demonstration of the new system at the 

next meeting of the Panel. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Jayne Vincent 

10. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 

The next meeting of the Panel will be held on Friday 15 May 

2019, at 10.00 a.m., in the Committee Room at Bootle Town Hall.  

 

 

 

 

Page 12

Agenda Item 3



Agenda Item 5  

Page 1 of 4 
 

 

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 
 
Date: 17th May 2019 
 
Title: Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity – 

Canal & River Trust’s draft Vision for the Leeds and Liverpool Canal in 
Sefton. 

 
Report of:  Steve Bergquist, Community Engagement Manager, Canal and River 

Trust. 
 

 
1. Purpose of the Report 
 
 1.1 To receive information regarding plans being developed with regard to 

the engagement on the Canal and River Trust’s draft Vision for the 
Leeds and Liverpool Canal in Sefton. 

 
 
2. Background 
 
 2.1 The main purpose of the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is 

to coordinate and ensure the quality of public engagement and 
consultation, in accordance with the standards for engagement and 
consultation. 

 
2.2 The Canal and River Trust look after and bring to life 2,000 miles of 

waterways, because we believe that life is better by water.  Research 
undertaken by the trust shows that spending time by water, whether it be 
your lunchbreak, daily commute or just a weekend stroll, really does 
make us feel happier and healthier. 

 
 2.3 The canal is a fantastic resource for local communities but currently it is 

underutilised and in places it is used in ways that are causing negative 
impacts for many people. The Vision for the Leeds & Liverpool Canal in 
Sefton sets out how we would like to see the canal bought to a wider 
audience, become more connected to the surrounding communities and 
used in more varied ways. The Canal and River Trust believe that by 
encouraging people to use the canal that is on their doorstep we can 
help to improve quality of life, benefit health and wellbeing and reconnect 
people to their local historic environment. 

 
  Eleven key areas have been identified to work in partnership with others 

in order to bring about positive changes to benefit the local communities 
that live and work along the canal corridor. Interventions in these areas 
will be focussed on the four key themes, outlined subsequently. 
Additionally, a series of ‘big ideas’ have been highlighted for future 
thought and discussion.  

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



Page 2 of 4 
 

 1. Aintree Racecourse - seeking enhanced boundary treatments and 
pursuing connections and partnerships with the racecourse. 

 2.        Blue Anchor Pub - creating connections between the local community 
and the canal. 

 3.        Swift to Cooksons Bridges, 4a to 5a - case study area for adoptions. 
 4.        Rimrose Country Park and proposed highway scheme - potential to 

influence a more positive outcome with enhanced access to the canal. 
 5.        Litherland - mooring and boating facility enhancements for an improved 

visitor experience, as well as  a new canal activity node. 
 6.        Gas works - a regeneration area where we have the potential to 

influence the outcome. 
 7.        Bootle Strand - opportunity to create a new offside mooring stop, 

benefiting from the proximity of the high street. Potential for community 
engagement and gateway to the canal enhancements. 

 8.  Lock & Quay access point 
  a - Canal gateway 
  b - Promoting the canal as a link to Liverpool 
 9.        Eldonian - historic terminus of the canal now the starting point of DFCT, 

with potential for facilities/activity hub to be located here. 
 10.      Stanley Lock Flight - promoting the connection to Liverpool via the canal. 
  11.      Liverpool Waters - looking at ways to tie in with the existing heritage 

trails, the heritage tourism potential and sustainable routes and links to 
Liverpool City Centre. 

 
3. The Engagement  
 
 3.1 Between May and July 2019, the Canal & River Trust will be working with 

existing partners and using existing local activity to engage canal users 
of all ages who use the Leeds and Liverpool Canal in Sefton, people who 
live near the Canal, local businesses and other local stakeholders to talk 
to them about the Vision and obtain feedback from the stakeholders on 
the proposals. 

 
 3.2 The Community Engagement Manager will be sharing with the Public 

Engagement and Consultation Panel at the meeting, a presentation on 
the key audiences and methodology that will be used for the 
engagement.  The engagement will be supported by a communications 
plan that will use a mixed media approach to raise awareness and 
encourage people to give their views. 

  
 3.3 The Community Engagement Manager will attend the July meeting of the 

Public Engagement and Consultation Panel with an update report.  
 

4. Legal Department Comments 

 
 4.1 Sefton’s Legal Department has considered the consultation plans 

contained in this report and has no comments to make. 
 

Page 14

Agenda Item 5



Page 3 of 4 
 

 
 
 
5. Recommendations 
 
 
 
 5.1 The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is recommended to: 
  

a) Note the presentation content and provide feedback on the public 
engagement plan for the Canal & River Trust’s draft Vision 

b) Request the officer returns to the Panel with an update report 
  c) Request that the officers return to the Panel to provide details of 

their feedback and evaluation resulting from the above consultation. 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 

 

Annexes 

 

Include copy of the proforma, the communicatons plan, any background or 
supporting documents and a copy of any questionnaire or programme for 
focus groups or public meetings. 

 

Page 16

Agenda Item 5



Our Vision for the 
Leeds & Liverpool Canal
in Sefton

DRAFT
April 2019

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



Canal & River Trust: Our Vision for the Leeds & Liverpool Canal in Sefton - DRAFT

Page 18

Agenda Item 5



Canal & River Trust: Our Vision for the Leeds & Liverpool Canal in Sefton - DRAFT

We’re the charity who look after and bring to life 2,000 miles of waterways, because we believe that life is 
better by water.

Our research shows that spending time by water, whether it be your lunchbreak, daily commute or just a 
weekend stroll, really does make us feel happier and healthier.

With ever increasing rates of obesity, stress and declining mental health in the UK, we are uniquely 
placed to make a significant contribution to improving the wellbeing of millions of people. Our canals 
and rivers run through some of the most heavily populated communities in England and Wales, providing 
accessible green and blue space where it’s needed the most.

That’s why we’re working with volunteers and communities across England and Wales to transform canals 
and rivers into spaces where local people want to spend time and feel better. We know this will bring 
wellbeing opportunities to millions.

Our work involves not only looking after our waterways, but promoting them widely to the eight million 
plus people who have waterways on their doorstep so that many more people benefit from our free, 
accessible and local source of wellbeing.

Please visit our website where you can learn more about walks, activities and more in your local area and 
find out how we are making life better by water: canalrivertrust.org.uk

The Trust has an overarching vision for living waterways to transform places and enrich lives. We want 
more people to use our waterways and be involved in caring for them. To achieve this we need to raise 
awareness of the canals and challenge people’s perceptions about their local waterway.

The Leeds & Liverpool Canal offers great opportunities for local residents as a community and leisure 
resource, as well as acting as a strategic link between but it currently does not fulfil its potential. We have 
identified some of the reasons for this, outlined later in this report. However, we feel that the canal offers 
an important resource with huge benefits for the surrounding local communities and we want to work 
with communities and partners to understand and overcome the challenges faced. 

Why we have developed a Vision for the 
Leeds & Liverpool Canal in Sefton

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



Canal & River Trust: Our Vision for the Leeds & Liverpool Canal in Sefton - DRAFT

44.8% 9.3%

97.9%

66.5%61.1%

44.8% of the 
population live within 
1km of the canal

9.3% of these people 
are unemployed

97.9% of the population 
within 1km is white

Levels of deprivation 
within 1km of the canal 
are 66.5%, which is higher 
than the Local Authority 
as a whole (61.1%)

23.6% living within 1km 
of the canal suffer from 
long term health issues

Local facts and figures:

273,790 people live in Sefton

122,609 of these people live within 1km of the canal

For comparison national averages are: 
• 14.6% of the population live within 1km of a Trust waterway
• 6.3% of the national population are unemployed
• 57.7% is the national deprivation score
• 17.9% of the national population have long term health issues

In the majority of cases the scores for Sefton exceed the national average. However, we know that the 
canal has great potential to address concerns related to:
• Health - We have a car-free access route on people’s doorsteps and are working with organistations 

such as Care Merseyside to promote the canal as a regular walking route for wellbeing walks and 
social prescribing. 

• Wellbeing - research shows that being by water improves people’s sense of wellbeing and we want 
to promote this to more people. There are 122,609 people living within 1km of Sefton’s canal and we 
would love more of them to benefit from their local wateway. 

• Employment/skills building - we offer varied opportunities for volunteering, helping people to build 
skills and develop qualifications, as well as giving back to their local community by improving their 
local canal environment. The Desmond Family Canoe Trail, based on the canal in Bootle, provides a 
variety of new and exciting ways for 16 - 25 years olds to connect with their local waterways. A range 
of social action projects, bespoke programmes and active engagement helps us get young people 
out on the water enjoying canoeing, kayaking and paddleboarding.

Page 20

Agenda Item 5



Canal & River Trust: Our Vision for the Leeds & Liverpool Canal in Sefton - DRAFT

Key Area Insights
In 2016 reseach was conducted on behalf of the Trust with residents of areas close to the canal in Sefton. 
The study aimed:
• To understand whether local residents share the same attitudes towards canals/waterways as do the 

people who use them
• To explore usage of canals/waterways amongst residents
• To act as a benchmark against towpath user survey data
• To input into the measurement of progress against key indicators

Key insights were gathered, which are summarised below:

• The majority of visitors to the Sefton canal reported that it was a good place to relax/de-stress, with 
a third visiting for health/fitness reasons.

• The safety security of the path was highlighted as an area of concern for non/infrequent users and 
as one of the areas for improvement amongst 1 in 5 canal users

• The canal was recognised far more as having a role in preserving the area’s history/heritage and 
contributing to the local culture by visitors compared to non-visitors. Visitors were more than twice 
as likely as non-visitors to recognise the benefits of the canal in bringing people together.

• Compared to the Local Authority as a whole, Sefton had a much higher level of unemployment, 
with more than half of the residents not working. The higher levels of those not working was likely to 
reflect, in part, the older age profile.

• Residents of Sefton reported being happier and having lower anxiety levels than the England 
average.    

• Although most were aware of the canal, less than half of Sefton residents felt it was important to 
them personally and almost two fifths had not visited the canal in the last year.

• Compared to the all canals average, twice as many canal users in Sefton visited the canal to engage 
in wildlife watching activities. 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5



Canal & River Trust: Our Vision for the Leeds & Liverpool Canal in Sefton - DRAFT

Our Vision:
The canal is a fantastic resource for local communities but currently it is underutilised and in places it is 
used in ways that are causing negative impacts for many people.  Our Vision for the Leeds & Liverpool 
Canal in Sefton sets out how we would like to see the canal bought to a wider audience, become 
more connected to the surrounding communities and used in more varied ways.  We believe that by 
encouraging people to use the canal that is on their doorstep we can help to improve quality of life, 
benefit health and wellbeing and reconnect people to their local historic environment.  

We have identified 11 key areas for us to work in partnership with others in order to bring about positive 
changes to benefit the local communities that live and work along the canal corridor. Interventions in 
these areas will be focussed on the four key themes, outlined subsequently. Additionally, a series of ‘big 
ideas’ have been highlighted for future thought and discussion.

Key Areas Overview:
1. Aintree Racecourse - seeking enhanced boundary treatements and pursuing connections and 

partnerships with the racecourse.

2. Blue Anchor Pub - creating connections between the local community and the canal.

3. Swift to Cooksons Bridges, 4a to 5a - case study area for adoptions.

4. Rimrose Country Park and proposed highway scheme - potential to influence a more positive 
outcome with enhanced access to the canal.

5. Litherland - mooring and boating facility enhancements for an improved visitor experience, as well as 
a new canal activity node.

6. Gas works - a regeneration area where we have the potential to influence the outcome.

7. Bootle Strand - opportunity to create a new offside mooring stop, benefiting from the proximity of 
the high street. Potential for community engagement and gateway to the canal enhancements.

8. Lock & Quay access point 
      a - Canal gateway  
      b - Promoting the canal as a link to Liverpool 

9. Eldonian - historic terminus of the canal now the starting point of DFCT, with potential for facilities/
activity hub to be located here.

10. Stanley Lock Flight - promoting the connection to Liverpool via the canal.

11. Liverpool Waters - looking at ways to tie in with the existing heritage trails, the heritage tourism 
potential and sustainable routes and links to Liverpool City Centre.

Page 22

Agenda Item 5



Canal & River Trust: Our Vision for the Leeds & Liverpool Canal in Sefton - DRAFT

M57

M58

A5758

A580

Queens Drive

A
59

Dunnings B
rid

ge Rd

A
565

A5058

A5036

A
59

Pr
op

os
ed

 p
or

t a
cc

es
s 

by
pa

ss

1

2

3

4

7

8

9

6

5

Key Areas:

1. Aintree Racecourse - seeking enhanced boundary treatements and 
pursuing connections/parternships with the racecourse

2. Blue Anchor Pub - creating connections

3. Cooksons Bridge 4a to 5a - case study area for adoptions?

4. Rimrose Country Park and proposed highway scheme - potential to 
influence a more positive outcome with enhanced access to the canal

5. Litherland - mooring and boating facility enhancements for an 
improved visitor experience

6. Gas works area - regeneration and potential to influence

7.  Bootle Strand - offside mooring opportunity and community 
engagement

8. Promoting the canal as a link to Liverpool (commuter route/ safe 
route/leisure route)

9. Eldonian - starting point of DFCT, potential for facilities hub

10. Stanley Lock Flight

11. Liverpool Waters
 

Key Themes:

A. Challenging and changing perceptions:
 - Beauty on the doorstep - tackling litter and graffiti (on towpath  
    and in the water) 
 - Access improvements
 - Increasing activity on both the topwath and the water

B. Building on community engagement activities

C. Making connections with new Partners eg Sovini/Mersey Healthcare 

D. Boundary treatments -  improving residential, commercial and 
industrial boundaries to the canal. How to tackle those that are not in 
Trust ownership

Big ideas:

i.  Dredging and reeds
ii.  Swing bridges
iii.  Proposed stadium - what role can the canal play?
iv.  Provide and activity centre by the canal
v.  Marketing the canal and our offer to local communities
vi.  Mapping what is already happening and identifying the gaps

1 mile

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



Canal & River Trust: Our Vision for the Leeds & Liverpool Canal in Sefton - DRAFT

Key Themes Overview:
Interventions along the canal corridor will be focussed on the four key themes as outlined below. These 
key themes build on the Trust’s strategy of being a waterways and wellbeing charity, seeking to make life 
better by water for those poeple who live or work in the local community:

• Challenging and changing perceptions:
 a. Beauty on the doorstep - tackling litter and graffiti 
 b. Access improvements
 c. Increasing activity on both the topwath and the water

• Building on community engagement activities.

• Making connections with new partners and groups e.g. Sovini, Mersey Care.

• Boundary treatments - improving residential, commercial and industrial boundaries to the canal to 
enahnce the canal corridor. With consideration given to how we tackle those that are not in Trust 
ownership.

a. Beauty on the doorstep

Litter, graffiti and fly-tipping, both on the towpath and in the water, all degrade the canal environment and 
from our research we know that these are key reasons that contribute to the canals being thought of as 
unsafe/undesirable places to go and put people off from using them.

The Trust takes these matters seriously but it is a constant challenge to keep the canal in a tidy state. 
Volunteer groups (either local community groups or corporate task days) are a fantastic resource for the 
Trust and are often willing to work with us to tackle these issues, as demonstrated by work that is already 
happening in Sefton with the local task force.  

Changing perceptions:

Page 24

Agenda Item 5



Canal & River Trust: Our Vision for the Leeds & Liverpool Canal in Sefton - DRAFT

b. Access Improvements

Good access points to and from the canal are critical if greater use of the canal is desired. These need to 
be well signed and inviting, encouraging local communities to use the resource that is on their doorstep. 
This could be a simple signage scheme, highlighting access to the canal or a more comprehensive 
project linking access information of many forms of public transport and sustainable routes in a wider 
area.

Along this section of the Leeds & Liverpool Canal there are some stretches with very limited access 
points and opportunities to improve this should be taken wherever possible. Any new developments 
along the canal should seek to provide well designed access points, creating wider connections to the 
local area. The canal should be seen as a local asset, where neighbouring land uses embrace and benefit 
from their waterside location. 

Existing access points along the study area would benefit from improvements as currently they do not 
always . These improvements could include signage, maintenance and lighting with detailed proposals 
depending on their exact location and circumstances.

c. Increasing Activity
Wellbeing by water - We believe that life is 
better by water. Whether it’s walking the dog, 
cycling to work or just looking for a place to 
relax, doing it next to our waterways will make 
you healthier and happier. 

The canal offers an opportunity to improve 
people’s sense of wellbeing, providing a space 
where people can get away from the noise, 
pressure and pollution of every day life. 

We want to see more people taking 
advantage of the many different activities 
and opportunities that the canal offers on a 
daily basis. Boating, walking, canoeing, angling 
and cycling are all great ways of enjoying 
our waterways. The traffic free nature of the 
towpath and canal allows people to get closer 
to nature, escape pollution and relax their minds 
whilst experiencing our waterways from a 
totally new perspective. Page 25

Agenda Item 5



Canal & River Trust: Our Vision for the Leeds & Liverpool Canal in Sefton - DRAFT

Community Engagement
We are fortunate to have active volunteer groups in the Sefton area undertaking a variety of work that 
enhances the condition of the canal corridor as well as engaging with a new audience of canal users. 
Activities include litter picks, canal clean ups and vegetation clearance. What we would like to do is 
widen this offer and engage and enthuse more of the local community to work with us to improve their 
local canal corridor. One area we are looking into is linking to people who cannot physically engage in 
our volunteer work but who can provide a welcome resource in terms of pulling information tgether for 
activites such as guided walks.

The Desmond Family Canoe Trail also operates within the study area offering a range of social action 
projects, bespoke programmes and active engagement that helps get young people out on the water 
enjoying canoeing, kayaking and paddleboarding.  This is the longest canoe trail of its kind in the UK and 
spans over 160 miles from Liverpool to Goole. Its ambition is to provide a variety of new and exciting 
ways for 16 - 25 years olds to connect with their local waterways. In turn they can protect and continue 
to care for them. 

Page 26

Agenda Item 5



Canal & River Trust: Our Vision for the Leeds & Liverpool Canal in Sefton - DRAFT

Making Connections
An important consideration for the Trust is that we cannot work in isolation. Our canals travel through 
numerous communities and administrative areas and we have limited resources to undertake works. 
Also our land ownership is relatively limited and we are not always in control of activities happening on 
our boundaries even if they have a big impact on the canal corridor. 

Working in partnership with local community groups, local businesses, planning authorities and health 
trusts to name a few, allows us to align our aspirations with others and work towards common goals. 
Some good examples of partnership working are starting to be established through Sefton already,   
such as: 

The Sovini Group 
A property management and development company, the Sovini Group continues to grow from strength 
to strength. The success of their commercial members provides investment in social housing and our 
local communities. The Sovini Group brings together like-minded organisations to work in partnership to 
the benefit of all stakeholders. We are keen to work in partnership with the Sovini Group to bring beauty 
to the doorstep of all their residents throughout Sefton. ADD numbers of their properties next to canal

Care Merseyside
Care Merseyside is an award winning social prescribing charity that offers non-clinical interventions for 
people in the local community. They help members of the local community feel less isolated and offer or 
refer to a range of activities in a non-medical environment to improve health and well-being. From walking 
groups to nutrition education, debt advice to the food club – Care Merseyside points people in the right 
direction.

Working in partnership with Care Merseyside, wellbeing walks are already well underway along our 
towpath in Sefton. This is something we would like to build on for the future with the Leeds & Liverpool 
Canal to become a regular walking route for social prescribing in Sefton.
 
SAFE Regeneration 
SAFE Regeneration is a community business working all over the world from its base beside the Leeds & 
Liverpool canal in Bootle. SAFE believes passionately that the good people of Bootle deserve quality and 
choice and are committed to working with community partners to continue to bring significant social, 
economic and environmental benefits to the neighborhood.

Working in partnership with the Trust, these organisations have the ability to help us transform places 
through Sefton and enrich the lives of everyone living and working in Sefton.  

Page 27

Agenda Item 5



Canal & River Trust: Our Vision for the Leeds & Liverpool Canal in Sefton - DRAFT

Boundary Treatments
Boundary treatments to the canal threshold have a direct impact as to how the canal is perceived.  
Industrial and unkempt boundaries give a poor impression and in some cases can discourage people 
from using the canal.  Long stretches of monotonous boundary fencing detracts from the potential 
beauty the canal has to offer. 

There are many ways to treat boundaries and innovative solutions can be used to mitigate the visual 
impacts of fencing whilst maintaining secure boundaries. A mixture of planting and fencing should be 
considered and long stretches of the same boundary treatment should be avoided where possible.

Examples of poor and enhanced boundary treatments:

Big ideas:
These ‘big ideas’ were all raised in discussions with the regional team. They are longer term projects that 
could require significant investment of time, resources and finance. As such these ideas are highlighted 
here for future thought and discussion:

• Dredging and reeds - seeking to reduce the negative impacts this has on boaters, currently these 
restrict the ability to moor up and explore the local area. Particularly on the stretch of canal from 
bridge x to x

• Swing bridges - these are locally sensitive issues and could be a reason why the canal is viewed 
negatively in some areas (due to the impact they have on stopping traffic, causing congestion etc)

• Proposed stadium - what role can the canal play as a sustainable transport route and how do we best 
promote the canal here?

• Provide an activity centre by the canal - this would act as a hub to encourage greater use of the 
canal and participation in sports activities by a wider range of people in the local community.

• Marketing the canal and our offer to local communities - what approaches should we considering 
here in order to maximise the useof the canal for a varierty of activities?

• Mapping all the fantastic activites that are already happening and identifying the gaps.

Page 28

Agenda Item 5



Canal & River Trust: Our Vision for the Leeds & Liverpool Canal in Sefton - DRAFT

Key Areas:
Area 1 - Aintree Racecourse 

Existing:

Vision:

Discussion:

This stretch of the canal is typified by ad-hoc boundary treatments. Overgrown vegetation leads to a 
narrowing of the towpath and long stretches of industrial style palisade fencing becomes monotonous 
and utilitarian. Whilst we understand the need for security, the impact that these boundaries have on the 
canal environment is considerable and needs to be assessed carefully when proposals are put forward.

We would like to work with adjacent landowners and communities to improve these boundaries and 
enhance the wider canal corridor. Visual permeability is welcomed in locations where views to the 
surrounding area are desirable and this helps to create a sense of openness. Where views are to be 
screened this can be achieved through a combination of fencing and appropriate planting, to soften and 
green the canal corridor, as well as creating habitats for wildlife.

The Racecourse boundary (approximately 1.5km) offers great potential to enhance the canal corridor and 
raise the profile of the Trust to a large audience.

Images:
Examples of boundary treatments that add visual 
interest as well as providing secure boundaries. 

Page 29

Agenda Item 5



Canal & River Trust: Our Vision for the Leeds & Liverpool Canal in Sefton - DRAFT

Area 2 - The Blue Anchor Pub

Existing:

Discussion:

We would like to work with adjacent landowners and communities to improve boundaries and enhance 
the wider canal corridor. Visual and physical permeability are welcomed in locations where views and 
access to the surrounding area are desirable and this helps to create a sense of openness and connect 
the canal to its surrounding communities. Where there is evidence of desire lines opportunities to 
improve access should be investigated. A lack of positive gateways to the towpath discourages use of 
the canal.

Where views are to be screened this can be achieved through a combination of appropriate fencing and 
native planting, to soften and green the canal corridor, as well as creating habitats for wildlife.

One location that could benefit from improved permeability is the Blue Anchor Pub. Creating a new 
access point here will benefit both canal users and customers of the pub. Providing a link between the 
towpath and pub and creating a waterside garden could help increase use of the canal corridor and 
improve passive surveillance of the canal.

Vision: Illustrative image of how the pub and canal could be linked through 
creation of a new access point and a waterside pub garden space. 

Page 30

Agenda Item 5



Canal & River Trust: Our Vision for the Leeds & Liverpool Canal in Sefton - DRAFT

Area 3 - Swift through Cooksons Bridges

Existing:

Vision:

Discussion:

The access points from Swift to Cooksons bridges link to local libraries, churches, schools, 
community acitivy and sport centres, traders, and a dense residential neighbourhood. It could 
provide a healthy walking route to local residents bringing children to school, the GP, or out for 
a stroll. However most of these entrances are not well-signposted and not accessible for people 
with difficulty walking pr with pushchairs, and are frequently grafitti-ed and litter strewn. 

By reaching out to the community and building on existing groups of volunteers, immediate 
improvements can be made to litter and graffitti. Engaging with groups such as the scouts 
or others to adopt lengths of towpath and build improvements such as seating, duck feeding 
stations, or canalside planters, can make the towpath feel more cared for and welcoming. The 
Trust could also install welcome signs and wayfinding both on the road adjacent and on the 
towpath, helping residents realise the ways the towpath can be integrated into their routine. 

Longer term, establishing links with local schools and integrating the canal into their curriculum 
can build lifelong support and care to the towpath. The potential to modify these access points 
to be DDA compliant should be studied, especially in conjunction with the local council, GPs, and 
community groups.

a. Cleanup by volunteers in Bootle.
b. Illustration of possible improvements at Swift Bridge

Images:

a b

Page 31

Agenda Item 5



Canal & River Trust: Our Vision for the Leeds & Liverpool Canal in Sefton - DRAFT

Area 4 - Rimrose Valley Country Park

Existing:

Discussion:

The Rimrose Valley Country Park is a large area of open space adjacent to the canal which offers 
a fantastic resource for local residents. It is bounded by the Leeds Liverpool canal to the east 
and the Southport to Liverpool railway line to the west.

Reclamation of the site started in 1993 with the aim of improving the area as both a recreational 
and educational resource for local people. The site now contains two Sites of Special Local 
Biological Interest (SLBI’s) and a Local Nature Reserve (LNR). The country park is a popular area 
of recreational land.

However, access points between the canal and park are not well signed and there is a lack of 
wayfinding information which means that use of the area is limited. Simple interventions such as 
new, durable signage along with ecologically sensitive gateway treatments could create a link 
between canal and park while improving canalside habitat. 

Plans for a major new highway link to run through the Country Park will have an indirect impact 
on the canal corridor and efforts are being made to minimise these through discussions 
between the Trust, the local authority and highways departments.

Page 32

Agenda Item 5



Canal & River Trust: Our Vision for the Leeds & Liverpool Canal in Sefton - DRAFT

Area 5 - Litherland
Existing:

Vision:

Discussion:
Mooring opportunities are limited in the wider study area. The Litherland site provides secure 
moorings, which are close to local shops and provides on site boating facilities. However, more 
could be done here to provide an improved offer including enhanced boating facilities, within 
a landscaped site with enhanced ecological value, alongside opportunities for community 
engagement, such as using the site as a loction for an  outdoor classroom and a space for local 
volunteers to meet.  All of these activities would help the site to feel more secure whilst also 
creating a node of increased activity along the canal, thereby reaching out to more people 
by raising the presence of the Trust, our staff and volunteers within the local community. The 
potential for this site to host an activity and wellbeing hub should be explored.

a, b. Illustrations of potential improvements at Literland 
moorings and boater facilities.

a

b

Images:

Page 33

Agenda Item 5



Canal & River Trust: Our Vision for the Leeds & Liverpool Canal in Sefton - DRAFT

a. Canalside residential development, Brentford.
b. Proposed canalside regeneration, Camden London.

Area 6 - Gas Works
Existing:

Discussion:
The Gas Works site is designated for redevelopment and the removal of the industrial buildings 
offers scope for an enhanced relationship of the site with the canal. The existing boundary 
wall, although providing some heritage value, could be remodelled in order to create enhanced 
links to the canal and connect a new community to the waterway and all it offers. When 
the opportunity arises the Trust will be in a strong position to comment on and guide any 
development proposals in this area based on our knowledge and understanding of both the local 
community and what works well in canalside developments, including examples from Brentford 
where we are working in partnership with the developers to deliver exciting new canalside 
developments. 

a b

Images:Vision:

Page 34

Agenda Item 5



Canal & River Trust: Our Vision for the Leeds & Liverpool Canal in Sefton - DRAFT

Discussion:
There is a great opportunity here to create another canal activity node by offering a new offside 
mooring location in an area of currently vacant land. This site benefits from the proximity of 
the high street and local shops and facilities, which should be mapped and highlighted from the 
canal towpath. There is potential for community engagement here through the promotion and 
growth of current volunteering groups who are undertaking fantastic work to improve the canal 
environment. 

Another project is to improve the physical gateway to the canal at this key location, as currently 
the route from street level to the towpath would benefit from improvements. We should also 
consider branding opportunities to raise the profile of both the Trust and the presence of the 
canal itself here as the potential reach to the local community is massive and links to local 
schools and colleges should be explored. 

Area 7 - Bootle Strand
Existing:

Vision: Illustrative image of a new short-term mooring at the Strand 

Page 35

Agenda Item 5



Canal & River Trust: Our Vision for the Leeds & Liverpool Canal in Sefton - DRAFT

Area 8a - Lock & Quay access point 
Existing:

Discussion:
SAFE Regeneration’s base at this access point, including their ownership of the Lock & Quay 
pub provide an amazing chance to partner with a vital local organisation. By fostering a longterm 
partnership with them, we can both expand our offer and reach. SAFE’s links with the community 
can help us build awareness and bring people to the canal, and even encourage a paddle on the 
Desmond Family Canoe Trail. In turn, we can share our knolwedge and capactiy in education and 
heritage to bolster SAFE’s planned canal heritage tours. As adjacent space comes forward for 
development, SAFE is a key stakeholder to engage. Working together, we can ensure that the 
needs of the community are represented and achieve the best possible outcome.  

Key elements that could make this section of canal more welcoming are improving boundary 
treatments and wayfinding, and signposting the volunteering and recreation opportunities on 
offer in the local area.

Vision: Illustrative image of access improvements and canoe storage and launch facilities.

Page 36

Agenda Item 5



Canal & River Trust: Our Vision for the Leeds & Liverpool Canal in Sefton - DRAFT

Discussion:

The canal offers a traffic free route within a large populated area linking the area to the centre 
of Liverpool. The towpath can act as both a commuter route to Liverpool for locals who work 
in the city as well as a leisure route for those wishing to explore Liverpool’s tourist attractions, 
shopping and cultural offer. 

From Litherland to Liverpool Docks is just 9km via the canal towpath and from Netherton 14km, 
and it can offer a very different route to the city centre than using the road network.
Linking to local transport plans is key and it would advantageous if there are opportunities for 
the Trust to comment on the Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan or similar proposals 
to set out the potential of the towpath. We can also learn from projects undertaken elsewhere 
such as the Birmingham Cycle Revolution project, which is successfully encouraging more 
people to cycle in and around the city, making it a healthier, greener, safer and less congested 
city and benefiting people’s health and wellbeing. The canals in Birmingham are seen as a 
significant resource to make the ambitious plan come to fruition. 

Area 8b - Promoting the canal as a link to Liverpool 
Existing:

Vision:

Page 37

Agenda Item 5



Canal & River Trust: Our Vision for the Leeds & Liverpool Canal in Sefton - DRAFT

Existing:

Vision:

Discussion:

Eldonian is the original terminus of the Leeds & Liverpool Canal. It is now a the starting point of 
Desmond Family Canoe Trail. Our ambition is to provide a variety of new and exciting ways for 
16 - 25 years olds to connect with their local waterways. In turn they can protect and continue to 
care for them. As the starting point of the trail and a gateway into Liverpool, there is potential for 
a facilities/activity hub to be located here to serve those paddling the trail and visitors making 
their way through the Stanley Flight and on to the Docks.

a. An outing along the Desmond Family Canoe Trail.
b. Canoe and kayak rental pavilion, New York.

Images:

a b

Area 9 - EldonianArea 9 - Eldonian

Page 38

Agenda Item 5



Canal & River Trust: Our Vision for the Leeds & Liverpool Canal in Sefton - DRAFT

Area 9 - Eldonian

Vision:

Discussion:
The Stanley lock flight connects the canal to the Liverpool dock system and onwards to the 
Liverpool link.  The towpath offers a continuous route, a traffic free alternative to the busy road 
network. 

This system of four locks was completed in 1848, finally connecting the canal to Liverpool’s dock 
system for the first time since its opening in 1774. The locks were designed by Jesse Hartley, 
who also built Stanley Dock and Albert Dock.

Plans to reconnect the lock flight to the surrounding area include enhancing access and visual 
permeability by reducing the height of an existing boundary wall and proposed high quality new 
development.

Area 10 - Stanley Lock Flight
Existing:

Page 39

Agenda Item 5



Canal & River Trust: Our Vision for the Leeds & Liverpool Canal in Sefton - DRAFT

Discussion:
Liverpool Waters is an ambitious 30-year vision to comprehensively transform the city’s 
northern docks. Regenerating a 60-hectare stretch to create a world-class, high-quality, mixed-
use waterfront quarter in central Liverpool and bringing life back to the historic docklands. The 
area has a rich industrial heritage and is home to numerous historically important assets, a fact 
recoginsed by its UNESCO World Heritage designation in 2004. 

The Trust has an important role to play here in maintaining the requirements of our customers 
and visitors within the wider environment. Our canal network links into the docks and onwards 
via the Liverpool Link. The canal is a route into the historic, vibrant city and takes people to the 
very heart of the city.

Area 11 - Liverpool Waters
Existing:

Vision:

Page 40

Agenda Item 5



Canal & River Trust: Our Vision for the Leeds & Liverpool Canal in Sefton - DRAFT

Action Plan

In order to bring about the changes we wish to see in the study area the Trust needs to work in 
partnership with others, from our staff and volunteers, to local communities, local businesses, 
healthcare providers, schools and local authourity departments. As such we have compiled an 
action plan, capturing the individual actions along with relevant information including proposed 
timescale, the need for any external funding, teams and groups to be involved etc. 

This will provide us with a platform to enable discussions with others which will then lead to 
projects on the ground, bringing about positive change to the canal environment and engaging 
more people to benefit from their local canal.  

Detailed action plan to be added

Page 41

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6 

Page 1 of 13 
 

 

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 
 
Date: 17th May 2019 
 
Title: Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity – 

To Review Sefton’s 0-19 Integrated Healthy Child Programme  
 
Report of:  Margaret Jones/Julie Murray 
 
 

 
1. Purpose of the Report 
 
1.1   To receive information relating to the consultation plans being developed to  

review Sefton’s Integrated 0-19 Healthy Child Programme to inform future 
commissioning and service development.  

 
2. Background 
 
 The main purpose of the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is to 

coordinate and ensure the quality of public engagement and consultation, in  
accordance with the standards for engagement and consultation. 

 
3. A review of Sefton’s 0-19 Healthy Child Programme.  
 
3.1 Sefton’s Integrated 0-19 Healthy Child Programme, became fully operational 

on 1st April 2017, replacing traditional 0-5 services, Health Visiting and FNP, 
and School Nursing. The Provider of the service is North West Boroughs 
Healthcare (NWBH).  

 
During the design phase of Sefton’s Integrated 0-19 Healthy Child Programme, 
extensive engagement and consultation was carried out with key stakeholders 
to inform the current service specification and delivery model.  Stakeholders 
included, Provider Staff, Health Partners, Parents and Young People. Young 
People contributed to the interview process and been engaged in service 
development since the start of the contract.  
 
A part of the commissioning cycle it is necessary to review the new service 
delivery model to assess effectives, to inform future commissioning and service 
improvement. Consultation and engagement with key stakeholders is integral 
to this process.  
 
During the design phase of Sefton’s Integrated 0-19 Healthy Child Programme, 
extensive engagement and consultation were carried out with key stakeholders 
and informed the current model.  
 
Stakeholders included, Staff, Health Partners, Parents and Young People.  

 
 

Page 43

Agenda Item 6



Page 2 of 13 
 

4.    The Consultation 
 

4.1 It is proposed that the consultation be carried out in 3 phases.  

Phase 1 – Consultation with Young People (11+) and Parents – 
through a variety of formats including, focus groups, and short survey. 
Each method will include a brief description of the 0-19 Integrated 
HCP, followed by a small number of questions to determine: 

• If they know about the service  

• If they have used the service? 

• If they have, was it easy to access and was it helpful?  

• If there is anything they would improve. 
  

Phase 2 – Consultation with Partners delivered through existing forums 
and team meetings. Each session will include a brief description of the 
0-19 Integrated HCP, followed by a small number of questions to 
determine: 

• If they know about the service  

• If they have interacted with the service 

• If they have, was it easy to access and was it helpful?  

• If they haven’t, are there reasons for that?  

• If there is anything they valued  

• If there is anything they would improve. 
 

Phase 3 – Consultation with Provider staff - will include stakeholder 
sessions delivered through existing forums and team meetings. Each 
session will include questions to determine: 

• Their experience of transitioning to the new model  

• What they value  

• What are the challenges  

• If there is anything they would improve 

 
5. Legal Department Comments 
 
 5.1 Sefton’s Legal Department has considered the consultation plans 

contained in this report and has no comments to make. 
 
5. Recommendations 
 
 5.1 The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is recommended to: 
  

a) Appraise the public engagement and consultation plan for the Review 
of Sefton’s Integrated 0-19 Healthy Child Programme. 

b) Request that the officers return to the Panel to provide details of their 
feedback and evaluation resulting from the above consultation. 

Page 44

Agenda Item 6



Page 3 of 13 
 

 
 
 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR USE 
 
Each box contains a form field for you to type in text or select an option by clicking it with 
your mouse.  Some of the boxes show information to help you complete the field when you 
place the cursor on the “click here …” field. 
 
When you have completed the form, save it as a Word document. 

 

Project Title: Review of Sefton’s Integrated 0-19 Healthy Child 
Programme   

Is your project linked to: (please choose from the drop-down below) 

A new service - please attach a new Equalitiess Impact Assessment 

Lead officer: Julie Murray 

 

Contact 
no  

0151 934 3343 

Designation Public Health E-mail Julie.murray@sefton.gov.uk 

How does your consultation relate to the Council’s Core Purpose (please tick) 

X Protect the most vulnerable 

X Facilitate confident and resilient communities 

X Commission, broker and provide core services 

 Place – Leadership and Influencer 

 Drivers of change and reform 

 Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity 

 Greater income for social investment 

 Cleaner, Greener 

Which of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s Priorities does your Consultation 
relate to (please tick) 

X 
Ensure all children have a positive start in life  
 

X 
Support people early to prevent and treat avoidable illnesses and reduce 
inequalities in health  
 

 
Support older people and those with long term conditions and disabilities 
to remain independent and in their own homes  

Public Engagement & Consultation Panel 

PROJECT PROPOSAL 

Page 45

Agenda Item 6



Page 4 of 13 
 

X 
Promote positive mental health and wellbeing  
 

X 
Seek to address the wider social, environmental and economic issues that 
contribute to poor health and wellbeing  



X 
Build capacity and resilience to empower and strengthen communities 

Does this consultation relate to an item on the Forward Plan?  If so which 
one? 

Yes, 0-19 Healthy Child Programme   

Other partners involved (please state if internal or external to the Council) 

North West Boroughs Healthcare (NWBH) 

 

(Planned) start 
date 

(Planned) end 
date: 

What is the allocated budget? 

01/06/19 01/08/19 Within existing PH resources, to cover 
room hire and refreshments.  

Background/Rationale 

Background  
 
Sefton’s Integrated 0-19 Healthy Child Programme, became fully operational on 1st 
April 2017, replacing traditional 0-5 services, Health Visiting and FNP, and School 
Nursing. The Provider of the service is North West Boroughs Healthcare (NWBH).   
 

As part of the commissioning cycle it is necessary to review the new service delivery 
model to assess effectiveness, to inform future commissioning and service 
improvement. Consultation and engagement with key stakeholders is integral to this 
process.   

  
During the design phase of Sefton’s Integrated 0-19 Healthy Child Programme, 
extensive engagement and consultation was carried out with key stakeholders to 
inform the current service specification and delivery model.  Stakeholders included, 
Provider Staff, Health Partners, Parents and Young People. Young People 
contributed to the interview process and been engaged in service development since 
the start of the contract.  

 
Public Health would like consult with the same range of stakeholders to understand 
their experiences of the new delivery model.  
 
Rationale:  
 
Consultation and Engagement with key stakeholders is essential; 
 

• To ensure that the Integrated 0-19 HCP is being effectively delivered 

Page 46

Agenda Item 6



Page 5 of 13 
 

• To Inform future commissioning and service Improvement  

• To ensure the 0-19 HCP is accessible to parents and young people 

• To understand the experiences of parents and young people who access 
the service.  

• To understand the connectivity between 0-19 HCP and other Children’s 
Services.   

 
Background to the Healthy Child Programme 
 
The Healthy Child Programme (HCP) is the early intervention and prevention public 
health programme that lies at the heart of universal services for children and 
families. The HCP is based on a model of ‘progressive universalism’. This means 
all families receive a number of standard services (universal). Additional services 
are available to those who need them or are identified as being at risk.  
 
Healthy Child Programme 0-5 Years 
 
Health Visitors deliver the key components of HCP for 0-5 Years. Universal support 
is provided to all children and parents.  
 
Pregnancy to 5 years is when the foundations of future health and wellbeing are 
laid down.  The effective implementation of the HCP 0-5 years contributes to a 
range of health and well-being outcomes such as 

• Care that help parents develop a strong bond with children 

• Care that keeps children healthy and safe 

• Protection of children from serious diseases, through screening and 
immunisation 

• Reduced childhood obesity by promoting healthy eating and physical activity 

•  Increased rates of breastfeeding  

• Identifies problems in children’s health and development so that they can 
get help with their problems as early as possible. 

• Improved readiness for school and improved learning 
 
Some elements of this programme are mandated: Antenatal health promoting 
visits, new baby review, 6-8-week assessment, 1 year assessment and 2-2 ½ year 
assessment, as well as the NCMP 
 
There are four tiers of health visiting services which assess and responds to 
children’s and families’ individual needs 
 

• Community Services – linking families and resources and building community 
capacity 

• Universal Services – primary prevention services and early intervention provided 
for all families with children aged 0-5 as per the HCP universal schedule of visits, 
assessments and developmental reviews. 

• Universal Plus Services – time limited support on specific issues offered to 
families with children aged 0-5 where there has been an assessed or expressed 
need for more targeted support. 

Page 47

Agenda Item 6



Page 6 of 13 
 

• Universal Partnership Plus – offered to families with children aged 0-5 where 
there is a need for ongoing support and interagency partnership working to help 
families with continuing complex needs 

 
Healthy Child Programme 5-19 Years  
  
School health delivers the key components of the HCP, for ages 5-19.  Support is 
provided to individual children and families and to schools as a whole. Work 
delivered includes: health assessments for individual children in key stages in 
development and any child new to the area, drop in clinics covering health and 
lifestyle behaviour, support for vulnerable children including safeguarding, assisting 
schools with lesson planning in PHSE and supporting schools develop health 
plans. 
 
The HCP 5-19 years aims to improve a range of public health outcomes including; 

• Improved sexual health and a reduction in rates of sexually transmitted 
infections in young people 

• Reduced numbers of teenage pregnancies 

• Healthy diet and exercise contributing to a reduction in obesity 

• Improved learning and educational outcomes 

• Smoking prevention and cessation 

• Alcohol and substance misuse prevention and awareness 

• Improved emotional health and well-being and improved resilience 

• The programme also incorporates the mandatory function of the national 
Child Measurement Programme (NCMP) 

 
Enhanced Service  
 
The Enhanced Service is a targeted programme for vulnerable young people and 
families. It involves more intensive support, delivered by specially trained staff. The 
Enhanced Service plays an important role in safeguarding children alongside 
statutory and other partners to ensure children are protected. 
 
Integration of the Service   
 
Development of the Integrated 0-19 HCP for Sefton continues to provide the 
opportunity to transform and integrate health services, education and children’s 
social care to improve quality health and well-being outcomes for our children and 
young people. 
 
Opportunities include 

• Co-production for children’s public health services, early help and wider 
family services 

• Streamlining universal access to the HCP with early intervention and 
targeted programmes for families needing more help 

• Better integration of services at the point of delivery with improved access 
and improved user experience heling to lead to improved outcomes for 
children, young people and families and reduced inequalities. 

 

Page 48

Agenda Item 6



Page 7 of 13 
 

Aims & Objectives 

The consultation will: 

• Inform future commissioning of the Integrated 0-19 Healthy Child 
Programme for Sefton residents.  

Provide opportunity for key stakeholders including service users to comment on the 
new delivery model 

 

Target Audience 

Key Stakeholders: Young People and Parents for whom the service is intended, 
General Practice, Schools/Education, Children’s Social Care, Early Years and 
Localities, CCG, General Practice, NHS England.   

 

Methodology (Please also include any details of any accessible methods) 

It is proposed that the consultation be carried out in 3 phases.  

Phase 1 – Consultation with Young People aged 11+ and Parents – through a 
variety of formats including, focus groups, and short survey (online and paper 
versions). Each method will include a brief description of the 0-19 Integrated HCP, 
followed by a small number of questions.  

Public Health are working with Youth Provision and Localities to support access to 
YP and Parents. The briefing and survey will be developed in a range of formats to 
enable individual or group responses.  

Facilitation of focus groups will be completed by the professional who knows the 
group or by a member of that group with support. 
 
Phase 2 – Consultation with Partners delivered through existing forums and 
team meetings. Each session will include a brief description of the 0-19 Integrated 
HCP, followed by a small number of questions. 

 

Phase 3 – Consultation with Provider staff - will include stakeholder sessions 
delivered through existing forums and team meetings. Each session will include 
questions to determine: 

• Their experience of transitioning to the new model  

• What they value  

• What are the challenges  

• If there is anything they would improve 
 

 

 

Page 49

Agenda Item 6



Page 8 of 13 
 

Communications Plan (If Council, please also contact Corporate 
Communications) 

Key Messages  

• Public Health are planning a consultation to support the future development and 
commissioning of Sefton’s 0-19 Healthy Child Programme.  

• Sefton’s Integrated 0-19 Health Child Programme has been operational since 
April 2017, during that time the service has been developing and delivering a 
core offer for 0 - 5 years and 5-Years. There is also an Enhanced Offer for 
Parents and Young People who need additional support. 

• The Healthy Child Programme has core mandated elements which are 
delivered by trained professional including health visitors and school health. 
These will not change. 

• Public Health are in the process of reviewing the service to inform future 
commissioning arrangements and would like to hear the views and experiences 
of key stakeholders who have engaged with the service in some way, including, 
parents, young people, partners and staff delivering the service.  

Timescales 

• Consultation to commence once approval has been given. To end 1st August 
2019 (8 Weeks)  

Audience 

• GP’s via Locality Meetings 

• Young People aged 11+, engaged with support from Youth Partners 

• Parents engaged with support from Locality and Early Years Partners 

• Schools via SASH and SAPH 

• Wider Partners – Localities, Early Help, Every Child Matters Forum, for 
example 

 

Potential barriers to involvement and action to overcome barriers 

Accessing and engaging with a cross section of the population is a challenge.  

PH is working closely with partners who work closely with Young People and 
Families to address this issue.  

It is hoped that by using a range of formats, settings and expertise from Partners 
that views from the target population will be sought. 

How will you protect the confidentiality of participants?  

All responses will be anonymised. 

 

How and when do you intend to report or publish the findings? 

. Public Health will prepare a consultation report for Cabinet, to share the finding. A 
feed back sheet for Parents and Carers/Young People will also be adapted.  

Page 50

Agenda Item 6



Page 9 of 13 
 

Level and type of patient/public engagement (place a tick in all that apply) 

Tick Level Description 

X Informing 
Giving people information about something (a limited 
opportunity for them to be involved) 

X Consulting 
Getting people’s views to help you develop/change your 
services/plans 

 
Deciding 
together 

Making decisions using patients’ and public’s views 

X 
Acting 
together 

Local people will be involved in making decisions and 
reviewing your plans/services 

 
Supporting 
local initiatives 

Local people will have the opportunity to lead, develop 
and deliver activities independently 

Does your project include: 

 Yes/No If No please explain 

Questionnaire 
(Please attach .  The Panel 
will not be able to 
consider your proposal if 
it is not available in 
advance for them to 
consider) 

Choose 
an 

item. 

. Draft questions including briefing are 
attached.  

The document for Young People 11+ are in 
the process of being youth proofed.   

Other materials  
(i.e. promotional materials) 

Yes  

A stakeholder map 
(a tool to help you identify 
your target audience – 
included in toolkit) 

Yes  

Reference to existing data 
or information that has 
already been completed  
(i.e. recent consultation/ 
research where results can 
be used to inform your 
consultation) 

yes . 

Any other information you would like to provide? 

Click here to enter text. 

Page 51

Agenda Item 6



Page 10 of 13 
 

 

 

 

If you require further information please contact either Jayne Vincent on 0151 934 
3733 

 
 
Signature of Project Lead: Julie Murray  Date: 30th April 2019 
 
Manager Approval: Margret Jones  Date: 30th April 2019 
 
Please return this form electronically to:- 
 
Jayne.vincent@sefton.gov.uk  

Page 52

Agenda Item 6

mailto:Jayne.vincent@sefton.gov.uk


 

Page 11 of 13 
 

 

 

Draft questions 
Young People 
Sefton Council is currently reviewing the 0-19 Healthy Child Programme provided 
by North West Boroughs Healthcare. The Service aims to achieve the best health 
and well-being results for all children and young people living and going to school 
in Sefton. 
School Nurses aim to provide health and wellbeing services to 5-19-year-old 
children and young people who live in Sefton or attend a school or college in 
Sefton. The service provides: 

• Health and wellbeing assessments 
• Health screening including the National Child Measurement Programme (in 

reception and year 6), vision screening and hearing screening 
• Immunisations 
• Advice and support through school drop-ins to give children and young 

people the opportunity to discuss any health-related issues they may have, 
including emotional wellbeing 

• Sexual health clinics (for secondary schools and colleges) 
• Advice and guidance for parents/carers 

There is also an Enhanced Service, targeted at vulnerable young people and 
families. It involves more intensive support, delivered by specially trained staff. 
The Enhanced Service plays an important role in safeguarding children alongside 
Council services, Family Doctors and other partners to ensure children are 
protected. 
The Council and North West Boroughs Healthcare always strive to develop and 
improve the service.  To help us do this, we need your views. With your help, the 
council and its partners can develop and improve services for children, young 
people and their families.  
 
We have created an online survey. The link to the survey is below. Please take a 
few minutes of your time to time to share your views and tell us what is good, and 
what could be improved within the current School Nursing service.  
 
Questions 

• What is good about the school nursing service 
 

• What could school nurses do better to help young people and families 
 
Please tell us about the things that are important to you. It might be the time and 
place where you see the school nurse. It might be the issues that you feel need to 
be discussed. It might be about how you feel when you see the school nurse and 
how you are treated. 
 
 
Parents & Carers 
Sefton Council is currently reviewing the 0-19 Healthy Child Programme (HCP). 
Sefton’s HCP supports the health and wellbeing of young people and their 
families. It is delivered by a team of Public Health Nurses from North West 
Boroughs Healthcare. 

Page 53

Agenda Item 6



Page 12 of 13 
 

The service is provided by qualified Health Visitors and School Nurses and 
supported by Nursery Nurses, Community Staff Nurses and Health Care 
Assistants. There is also a dedicated Immunisation Team for school age children.  
The service is organised around 4 levels of care, with families in the greatest need 
receiving additional help and support and families with the least need receiving 
universal services.  
The 5 universal contacts that every mum and baby should receive are: 

• A pre-birth visit in the last few months of pregnancy. 

• A new birth visit when baby is around 10-14 days old. 

• A 6-8-week post birth visit for mum and baby. 

• A health and development review at around 8-12 months. 

• A health and development review at 24-30 months 
 

At these visits Health Visitors focus on providing: 

• Care that help parents develop a strong bond with children 

• Care that keeps children healthy and safe 

• Protection against serious diseases, through screening and immunisation 

• Healthy eating and physical activity advice to help reduce obesity 

• Support to increase rates of breastfeeding  

• Identifying problems in children’s health and development so that they can 
get help with their problems as early as possible. 

• Improved readiness for school and improved learning 

School Nurses aim to provide health and wellbeing services to 5-19-year-old 
children and young people who live in Sefton or attend a school or college in 
Sefton. The service provides: 

• Health and wellbeing assessments 
• Health screening including the National Child Measurement Programme, 

vision screening and hearing screening 
• Immunisations 
• Advice and support through school drop-ins to give children and young 

people the opportunity to discuss any health-related issues they may have, 
including emotional wellbeing 

• Sexual health clinics (for secondary schools and colleges) 
• Advice and guidance for parents/carers 

 
There is also an Enhanced Service, targeted at vulnerable young people and 
families. It involves more intensive support, delivered by specially trained staff. 
The Enhanced Service plays an important role in safeguarding children alongside 
Council services, Family Doctors and other partners to ensure children are 
protected. 
The Council and North West Boroughs Healthcare always strive to develop and 
improve the service.  To help us do this, we need your views. With your help, the 
council and its partners can develop and improve services for children, young 
people and their families.  
 
We have created an online survey. The link to the survey is below. Please take a 

Page 54

Agenda Item 6



Page 13 of 13 
 

few minutes of your time to time to share your views and tell us what is good, and 
what could be improved within the current Health Visiting and School Nursing 
services.  
 
Questions 

• What is good about the Health Visiting and school nursing service 
 

• What could Health Visitors and or School Nurses do better to help you as 
parents and your children. 

 
Please tell us about the things that are important to you. It might be the time and 
place where you see the Health Visitor or School Nurse. It might be about the level 
of support you have received or how you think the staff have treated you. It might 
be about how information is shared with you and your family. 
 
 

Page 55

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7 

T&HI 2019 Survey – Proposal Report   Page 1 of 15 

 

 

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 
 
Date: 17th May 2019 
 
Title: Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity –

Transportation & Highway Infrastructure Services  
 
Report of:  Michelle Knox, Development & Monitoring Officer, 0151 934 4226  
 

 
1. Purpose of the Report 

 
1.1 To receive information with regard to the consultation plans being 

developed with regard to the Transportation & Highway Infrastructure 
Services 

 
2. Background 

 
2.1 The main purpose of the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is 

to coordinate and ensure the quality of public engagement and 
consultation, in accordance with the standards for engagement and 
consultation. 

 
3. Transportation & Highway Infrastructure Services 

 
3.1 The Highway network is the largest community fixed asset for which local 

authorities are responsible. It is vital and fundamental to the economic, 
social and environmental well-being of the community. 
 

3.2 The need for this consultation and engagement exercise has arisen 
mainly for the following reasons: 

 
(a) As part of the Council’s promise to put people at the heart of what we 

do. 
 

(b) The identified need to ensure that Locality Services – Commissioned 
– Transportation & Highway Infrastructure Services Division aims to 
become more focused on the customer. 

 
(c) The wish to adhere to recommendations published within the DfT 

Highway Maintenance Efficiency Programme publication “Prevention 
and a Better Cure” - Pothole Review. 

 
(d) Future funding opportunities from the DfT for the Incentive Fund 

require that they will reward Councils who demonstrate they are 
delivering value for money in carrying out cost effective 
improvements. 

 
(e) Amongst these improvements is the establishment of a 

communications strategy, and in accordance with the suggestion that 

Page 57

Agenda Item 7



T&HI 2019 Survey – Proposal Report   Page 2 of 15 

 
 

part of this should include the undertaking of public opinion surveys 
on an annual basis; 2019 will be the fourth year in which we 
undertake this annual survey.  

 
 

4. The Consultation 
 

4.1 The aim of this consultation is to contribute toward baseline results, and 
measure and benchmark against the established baseline, to enable 
assessment of performance that facilitates service prioritisation and 
improvement. 
 

4.2 The consultation will also include a review and update of the established 
methodology to utilise and to recreate on an annual basis thereafter  

 
4.3 The DfT Incentive Fund guidelines recommend participation in an annual 

survey, delivered externally, via the National Highway & Transport 
Survey (NHTS), by Ipsos MORI, at a cost to each participating 
organisation of between £9,050 and £9,810 (2019 prices, dependent on 
the number of questions for inclusion in survey, with the option of either 
an eight-page or twelve-page survey). Average participation in the 2018 
NHTS survey was 25.3%, against a targeted sample size of 3,615 
participants. This equates to an average return of 913 completed 
surveys, with the vast majority completed as postal survey, average 859 
or 94%.  Only a small percentage, 6%, actually completed the survey on-
line. 

 
4.4 The guidelines suggest that participation in this survey or “an equivalent” 

on an annual basis would be used to satisfy at least Level 2 
achievement of the customer satisfaction aspect of funding allocation. 
We believe that we can achieve better value for money by carrying out 
the survey ourselves; furthermore, we are also confident that a 
comparable response rate can be achieved, with minimal financial 
outlay.  
 

4.5 By aiming to align our survey questions as close as possible to the 
NHTS national survey, we believe this satisfies the guideline suggestion 
to use “an equivalent” In addition, we will also be facilitating the ability to 
benchmark against our own performance year-on-year, and other 
authorities with confidence. 

 
4.6 The objective is to determine the views of a sufficiently large and 

representative section of the community about Transportation & Highway 
Infrastructure Services. The results of which would give Members and 
Officers confidence that the views expressed were representative of the 
whole community using the transportation and highway infrastructure 
services within Sefton. 

 
4.7 The consultation will be held over approx. 15 weeks, from June to 

September 2019 

Page 58

Agenda Item 7



T&HI 2019 Survey – Proposal Report   Page 3 of 15 

 
 

 
4.8 The key stakeholders include anyone who uses the highway 

infrastructure within Sefton. 
 

4.9 The following consultation and engagement methods will be used: 

• On-line questionnaire available via Sefton’s electronic consultation 
facility 

• Press release 

• Online channels, including: 
o Sefton’s internet and intranet 
o My Sefton website 
o Partner websites (eg: OVH, Sefton CVS, Invest Sefton etc) 
o Yammer 
o Twitter 

• Focused Facebook campaign 

• Direct communication with key stakeholders (as indicated in 
stakeholder list attached), the using the most effective and 
appropriate methods. This will also include communication with 
previous year respondents who indicated willingness to participate 
in future surveys. 

• Posters and leaflets in appropriate outlets (Civic Buildings, 
Libraries, Leisure Centres 

• Dedicated telephone line 

• Presentation events to focus groups and hard to reach groups 
where possible  
 

4.10 Feedback and results of the survey will be reported back to the 
Consultation and Engagement Panel 
 

4.11 The survey content remains largely the same as previous year, to enable 
us to benchmark against the baseline set using results from previous 
years’ surveys. However, taking into consideration some of the 
comments provided in the 2018 survey, particularly in relation to the 
length of the survey, several questions have been deleted. These are 
mainly around the use of transport, and we believe the effect on 
equivalence with NHT Survey is minimal. There has also been some 
minor re-ordering of the questions.  
  

4.12 Survey responses collected will be recorded in a consistent manner, 
adhering to the protections as set out in the Data Protection Act 1998.  

 
5. Legal Department Comments 
 
 5.1 Sefton’s Legal Department has considered the consultation plans 

contained in this report and has no comments to make.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 59

Agenda Item 7



T&HI 2019 Survey – Proposal Report   Page 4 of 15 

 
 

6. Recommendations 
  

6.1 The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is recommended to: 
  
  a) Appraise the public engagement and consultation plan for the 

Transportation & Highway Infrastructure Services 
 
  b) Request that the officers return to the Panel to provide details of 

their feedback and evaluation resulting from the above consultation. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 60

Agenda Item 7



 

C&E – 2019 Survey Proposal  Page 5 of 15 

 

Public Engagement & Consultation Panel 

PROJECT PROPOSAL  

This form should be completed for all public consultation and engagement projects 
undertaken by the Council.   Further advice and assistance can be found in the 
Consultation & Engagement toolkit which can be downloaded from 
www.yourseftonyoursay.co.uk. 
 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR USE 
 
Each box contains a form field for you to type in text or select an option by clicking it with 
your mouse.  Some of the boxes show information to help you complete the field when you 
place the cursor on the “click here …” field. 
 
When you have completed the form, save it as a Word document. 
 

Project Title: Transportation & Highway Infrastructure Services 

Is your project linked to: 

A new service - please attach a new Equalitiess Impact Assessment 

Lead officer: Michelle Knox Contact 
no  

0151 934 4226 

Designation Development & 
Monitoring Officer 

E-mail Michelle.knox@sefton.gov.uk 

Which of the Council’s Priorities does your Consultation relate to (please tick) 

 The Economy 

 The Most Vulnerable 

 Health and Wellbeing 

 Reshaping the Council 

 Resilient Communities 

✓ The Environment 

Which of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s Priorities does your Consultation relate 
to (please tick) 

 
Ensure all children have a positive start in life  
 

 
Support people early to prevent and treat avoidable illnesses and reduce 
inequalities in health  
 

 
Support older people and those with long term conditions and disabilities to 
remain independent and in their own homes  
 

 
Promote positive mental health and wellbeing  
 

Page 61

Agenda Item 7



C&E – 2019 Survey Proposal   Page 6 of 15 

 
Seek to address the wider social, environmental and economic issues that 
contribute to poor health and wellbeing  
 

 Build capacity and resilience to empower and strengthen communities 

Does this consultation relate to an item on the Forward Plan?  If so which one? 

N/A 

Other partners involved (please state if internal or external to the Council) 

None 

(Planned) start 
date 

(Planned) end 
date: 

What is the allocated budget? 

10/06/19 29/09/19 c £500 

Background/Rationale 

The Highway network is the largest community fixed asset for which local authorities are 
responsible. It is vital and fundamental to the economic, social and environmental well-
being of the community.  

The need for this consultation and engagement exercise has arisen mainly for the 
following reasons. 

1) As part of the Council’s promise to put people at the heart of what we do.  
2) The wish to adhere to recommendations published within the DfT Highway 

Maintenance Efficiency Programme publication “Prevention and a Better Cure” - 
Pothole Review. 

3) Future funding opportunities from the DfT for the Incentive Fund require that they 
will reward Councils who demonstrate they are delivering value for money in 
carrying out cost effective improvements. Amongst these improvements is the 
establishment of a communications strategy where it suggests that part of this 
should include the undertaking of public opinion surveys on an annual basis. 

4) That Locality Services – Commissioned - Transportation and Highway Infrastructure 
Services Division need to become more focused on the customer. 

 
 

Aims & Objectives 

 The aim of this consultation is:  

1. To continue to measure and benchmark against previous survey results and 
established baseline, to enable assessment of performance that facilitates service 
prioritisation and improvement. 

2. To review the established methodology to utilise and to recreate on an annual basis 
thereafter.  

The Objective is to determine the views of a sufficiently large and representative section of 
the community about Transportation & Highway Infrastructure Services. The results of 

Page 62

Agenda Item 7



C&E – 2019 Survey Proposal   Page 7 of 15 

which would give Members and Officers confidence that the views expressed were 
representative of the whole community within Sefton. 

Target Audience 

Ideally, Key Stakeholders within a sample size of 3847. However, response rate exceeding 
that of 2018 survey would be considered a positive outcome. 

The above number is suggested following analysis published as part of the National 
Highways and Transportation Survey 2014, which reported that this was the average 
sample size of 300,050 surveys issued, over 78 participating local authorities.  

Methodology 

The views of a representative section of the community will be determined by means of: 

 

• Providing information on the proposed actions, their consequences and how 
people can comment to the community through local media. 

• Seek the views of the people of Sefton by placing details of the proposed 
actions on the Council’s electronic consultation facility and providing hard 
copies of the questionnaire in public access buildings throughout Sefton. 

 

The attached questionnaire and supporting information will be placed on the Council’s 
electronic consultation system.  This will be supported by a series of press releases and 
other media work developed in conjunction with the Communications Unit, including 
promotion via a targeted Facebook campaign, which proved to be a fruitful course of 
action last year, and increased participation to the highest level to date. 

The outputs will be a report summarising the responses, which will be presented to Public 
Engagement & Consultation Panel, and published on the internet.   

The outcome will be to inform elected members of stakeholder opinion to enable the 
shaping of policy for the future prioritisation and improvement of the service.  

Communications Plan  

See attached 

Potential barriers to involvement and action to overcome barriers 

Low response rate to the on line questionnaire. 

Lack of understanding of both the services provided and the limitations of aspects that can 
realistically be influenced.  

To encourage as many responses as possible, there would be a social media campaign 
organised by the Communications Unit with regular updates / reminders throughout the 
consultation period.  

 

  

Page 63

Agenda Item 7



C&E – 2019 Survey Proposal   Page 8 of 15 

How will you protect the confidentiality of participants?  

Respondents will not be required to provide details of their identity, but they will have the 
opportunity to indicate if they agree to be contacted for future similar consultations, as a 
repeat of this specific consultation is planned to take place in 12 months’ time.  

Respondents will also have the opportunity to indicate if they would be willing to participate 
in any other future surveys, regardless of subject matter 

Any personal information that is provided will be held in a database that will not be used 
for any other purpose.  Personal details will not be linked to any consultation response in 
any published material.  

The survey will also include information in relation to General Data Protection Regulations.  

How and when do you intend to report or publish the findings? 

Proposed timetable: 
 
April  – May 2019 – Preparation of promotional material, liaison with partners etc 
 
June – September 2019 – Consultation materials placed on consultation facility; postal 
surveys sent out; Facebook campaign commences; meetings with focus groups ongoing, 
promotional events undertaken 
 
Oct 2019 – Jan 2020 – Analysis and compilation of responses and production of report. 

Feb – March 2020 – Presentation of report to consultation and engagement panel, 
publication on the council’s website.       

Level and type of patient/public engagement (place a tick in all that apply) 

Tick Level Description 

 Informing 
Giving people information about something (a limited 
opportunity for them to be involved) 

✓ Consulting 
Getting people’s views to help you develop/change your 
services/plans 

 
Deciding 
together 

Making decisions using patients’ and public’s views 

 Acting together 
Local people will be involved in making decisions and reviewing 
your plans/services 

 
Supporting local 
initiatives 

Local people will have the opportunity to lead, develop and 
deliver activities independently 

Does your project include: 

 Yes/No If No please explain 

Page 64

Agenda Item 7



C&E – 2019 Survey Proposal   Page 9 of 15 

Questionnaire  
(Please attach.  The Panel will 
not be able to consider your 
proposal if it is not available 
in advance for them to 
consider) 

Yes  

Other materials  
(i.e. promotional materials) 

Yes  

A stakeholder map 
(a tool to help you identify your 
target audience – included in 
toolkit) 

No The toolkit to identify and map stakeholders 
has been used to establish a list of whom we 
believe are our influential stakeholders 

Reference to existing data or 
information that has already 
been completed  
(i.e. recent consultation/ 
research where results can be 
used to inform your 
consultation) 

yes  

Any other information you would like to provide? 

 
There is an option available for this survey to be delivered externally, via the National 
Highway & Transport Survey (NHTS), by Ipsos MORI. Ipsos MORI’s charge to each 
participating authority in 2019 ranges from £9,050 to £9,810 (dependent on the number of 
questions to be included in survey), and includes a sample size targeted of 3,615, plus one 
reminder to non-respondents.  It may also be useful to note that, despite targeting a 
specific sample size, and offering the option to participate in a prize draw, the average 
response rate for the Ipsos MORI survey in 2018 was 25.3%. We believe we can achieve 
a comparable response rate at a much reduced cost  

In the Incentive Fund allocation guidelines, the DfT make reference to the NHTS, and 
advise that a level 2 authority (as a minimum) would be considered as one that “…collects 
public feedback annually through robust mechanisms such as the NHT Public Satisfaction 
Survey or an equivalent….” as a contributory factor to the customer satisfaction aspect of 
funding allocation. The previous assessment by DfT resulted in a level 3 award, and the 
aim is to maintain this level, and maximise any other related funding opportunities.  We 
believe that we can achieve better value for money by carrying out the survey ourselves. 
By using similar questions as those in the NHTS, we believe we can satisfy the DfT’s 
requirement to use “an equivalent” survey, on an annual basis.  Furthermore, we can use 
the results to benchmark against our own performance, and that of others, with more 
confidence. 

 

If you require further information please contact either Jayne Vincent on 0151 934 3840  

 

Page 65

Agenda Item 7



C&E – 2019 Survey Proposal   Page 10 of 15 

Signature of Project Lead: 

 

Date: 29/04/2019 
 

Manager Approval:   

 

Date: 29/04/2019 

 
Date approved by Business Intelligence & Performance Team  Date: 
 

 
Please return this form electronically to:- 
 
Jayne.vincent@sefton.gov.uk 

Page 66

Agenda Item 7

mailto:Jayne.vincent@sefton.gov.uk


 

C&E – 2019 Survey Proposal  Page 11 of 15 

 

Public Engagement & Consultation Panel 

PROJECT PROPOSAL  

Equality Impact Assessment:  
Transportation & Highway Infrastructure Services Consultation 

June to September 2018 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 The Equality Act 2010 outlines how public bodies must have due regard to: 
 

1. Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is 
prohibited by or under this act 

2. Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it 

3. Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 
 

2.0 Protected Characteristics 
 
2.1 Equality Act 2010 is clear that there are particular characteristics that are intrinsic to an 
individual against which it would be easy to discriminate. Section 149 (the Public Sector 
Equality Duty) lists the characteristics known as ‘protected characteristics’ against which 
we have to test for discrimination. These characteristics are gender, race/ethnicity, religion 
and belief, sexual orientation, age, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity and 
disability. 
 

3.0 Identifying Impacts across protected characteristics 
 

Protected 
characteristic 

Recommendations/mitigating actions  

Gender 
 

The consultation process will be accessible to all and will not be 
discriminatory against any identified group. 

Age 
 
 

Younger people are less likely to participate in this type of consultation 
exercise. Promotion event planned at Hugh Baird College, and 
information provided to libraries and sports centres. 

Disability 
 
 

Hard copies of documentation will be sent out in post to a selection of 
stakeholders, and will be available to all on request. 
It will also be available in a large print format and an “easy-read” 
format if required.  Details of a dedicated telephone line are included 
on documentation, to assist those with additional literacy needs who 
wish to participate in the consultation. 

Race/Ethnicity  Will use Sefton’s access to a translation service if required. 

Religion or 
belief  

As it is a 3-month consultation period, there are a number of religious 
festivals taking place, but there is plenty of time for people to get 
involved outside these festival periods. 

Sexual 
Orientation 

The consultation process will be accessible to all and will not be 
discriminatory against any identified group. 

Gender 
Reassignment  

The consultation process will be accessible to all and will not be 
discriminatory against any identified group. 

Pregnancy and 
maternity  

The consultation process will be accessible to all and will not be 
discriminatory against any identified group. 

Page 67

Agenda Item 7



 

C&E – 2019 Survey Proposal  Page 12 of 15 

 

Public Engagement & Consultation Panel 

PROJECT PROPOSAL  

Transportation & Highway Infrastructure Services Consultation Exercise 
June to September 2019 – Stakeholder List 
 
Using the Stakeholder Identification guide, we have compiled this comprehensive list of 
who we believe are our influential stakeholders 
 

COMMUNITY GROUPS AND FORUMS 

Sefton CVS Suite 3B, 3rd Floor, North Wing, 
Burlington House, Crosby Road North, 
Waterloo, L22 0LG 
mail@seftoncvs.org.uk 

We would ask Sefton CVS for assistance in reaching the following groups:  

• Embrace 

• In Trust 

• Sefton Ability 

• Sefton Access Forum 

• Sefton Equalities Standing 
Group 

 

• Sefton Visual Impairment Group 

• Sefton Young Advisors 

Sefton Older Persons 
Forum 

4th Floor, The Shakespeare Centre 
43-51 Shakespeare Street 
Southport 
Merseyside 
PR8 5AB 

justine@spacadvocacy.org.uk 

Southport Access for 
Everyone (SAFE) 

Victoria Methodist Church, 
Sussex Rd 
Southport 
Merseyside 
PR8 6DG 
southportaccess@hotmail.co.uk 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT  

Email to be sent to all following: 

• Internal – Chief Executive, Executive Directors, Director of Social Care and 
Health, Director of Public Health, Heads of Service 

• All Sefton Councillors (66) 

• Local MPs: Peter Dowd; Bill Esterson; John Pugh 

• Aintree Village Parish Council 

• Formby Parish Council 

• Hightown Parish Council 

• Ince Blundell Parish Council 

• Little Altcar Parish Council 

• Lydiate Parish Council 

• Maghull Town Council 

• Melling Parish Council 

• Sefton Parish Council 

• Thornton Parish Council 

  

Page 68

Agenda Item 7



C&E – 2018 Survey Proposal   Page 13 of 15 

 

PREVIOUS PARTICIPANTS 

In the 2018 survey, participants were given the opportunity to provide their contact 
details if they wanted to participate in future similar surveys. 695 of the 
respondents indicated a “Yes” response to this, and provided their contact details. 
97% of this group also provided their email address, so will be contacted 
electronically. 
  

OTHER AGENCIES 

• Aintree Coachline 

• Arriva Northwest 

• Association of Sefton Disabled 

• Bootle Business Village Partnership 

• Delta Taxis 

• Freight Transport Association 

• Hugh Baird College 

• Litherland Resource Centre 

• Liverline Travel Services 

• Maghull Ramblers 

• Mersey Regional Ambulance Service 

• Merseyrail 

• Merseyside Cycling Campaign 

• Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service 
Headquarters  

• Merseyside Police - Sefton Traffic 
Management 

• Merseytravel 

• Netherton Activity Centre 

• Netherton Community Forum 

• Opportunities Shop Ltd 

• Ormskirk, Preston & Southport 
Travellers Assoc. 

• Ormskirk, Preston & Southport 
Travellers Assoc. 

• Queens Road Neighbourhood 
Centre 

• Radio Yellow Top Cabs (Southport) 
Ltd 

• Railway Development Society (NW) 

• Ramblers Association 

• Seaforth Information Network Group 

• Seaforth Radio Cars 

• Sefton Area Partnership of Local 
Councils 

• Sefton Bridlepath Committee 

• Sefton Footpath Group 

• Sefton Public Health 

• South Sefton Hackney Carriage 
Drivers Assoc 

• South Sefton Partnership 

• Stagecoach Merseyside & South 
Lancs 

• Waterloo and Crosby Business 
Village Partnership 

• West Lancs Footpath Group 

• Wingates Tours 

Page 69

Agenda Item 7



 

C&E – 2018 Survey Proposal      Page 14 of 15 

 

Public Engagement & Consultation Panel 

PROJECT PROPOSAL  
 
 

Locality Services – Commissioned 
Transportation & Highway Infrastructure Services 

Consultation & Engagement 2018 - Communication Plan 

Key:        Activity Completed  Activity Cancelled  Activity started ☺ Activity not started   

O
p

ti
o

n
: 

e-Consult Forum / 
Meetings 

Contact Centre  Hard to 
Reach 
Groups 

Letter/email Posters/ 
Leaflets 

Internet & Intranet/ 
Yammer/Twitter/ 
Facebook/  
Press release  

A
c
ti

o
n

 

(i) Awareness and 
signposting to 
eConsult wherever 
possible (posters, 
internet etc.) 
 
(ii) Questionnaire 
loaded on to  
e-consult  - to be 
effective from June 
2019 
 

Meet with 
“hard to reach” 
groups (using 
advice and 
support of 
CVS and C&E 
staff where 
possible) 

CC informed  of 
Consultation 
Exercise and 
relevant contact 
details (dedicated 
phone line and 
email address) 
 

As per 
Stakeholder 
list 

(i) Sefton CVS 
newsletter to 
community groups  
 
(ii) Letter or email of 
2019 questionnaire 
sent to previous 
respondents, who 
indicated willingness to 
participate in future 
surveys 
  
(iii) Letter or email to 
other identified  
Stakeholder Groups 
and Contacts 
 

(i) Libraries – 
posters to be 
displayed, and 
leaflets provided 
 
(ii) Leisure 
centres – 
posters to be 
displayed and 
leaflets provided 
 
(iii) Posters to 
be displayed in 
foyers of main 
civic buildings  
 
(iv) 2 x pull-up 
banners 
designed and 
procured by 
Comms 
department 
 

(i) Notices and links 
to eConsult on 
intranet and internet 
to raise staff and 
customer awareness 
 
(ii) Organic via 
Twitter, Facebook, 
LinkedIn 
 
(iii) Paid via 
Facebook/ LinkedIn 
advertising 
 
(iv) Online channels 
including My Sefton 
website, Yammer etc 
 
(v) Press release in 
local papers 
 
(vi) Highlight and 
links on partner 
websites (other LAs) 
to eConsult 

  

P
age 70

A
genda Item

 7



C&E – 2018 Survey Proposal   Page 15 of 15 

 

 

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Have your say on 

Transportation & Highway 
Infrastructure Services  

www.sefton.gov.uk

2019 Survey 

Page 73

Agenda Item 7



                           to our annual survey, and thank you for taking the time to 

participate and give us your views.  The survey will help us to understand 

what you think of Highways and Transportation services in Sefton, 

including:

P the condition of the roads

P street lights

P pavements and footpaths

P traffic congestion and pollution

P cycle facilities

We want to know if you think these could be improved and what your 

priorities are; this is your chance to have your say.  The questionnaire can 

be completed by anyone who lives, works or travels in Sefton. It’s quick 

and easy to complete the survey online, just go to  tba  

Alternatively, you can complete this paper copy and return the completed 

form in the pre-paid envelope by date tba. 

Please be assured, all responses will be dealt with in the strictest 

confidence, and will be used for our research purposes only. We will not 

pass your details on to any third party. Results of the survey will be 

published on our website*.

If you have any enquiries in relation to the questionnaire, you can email 

YourSeftonYourSay@sefton.gov.uk or call 0151 934 4226.

(*To see results from previous year’s survey, go to the “Parking, Roads & Travel” 

section on our website.)

Welcome

HOW DID YOU HEAR ABOUT THE SURVEY?

First of all, can you tell us how you heard about this survey? 

Local free paper
Online (via the 
Council website)

By email Via Facebook
Advertised in other 
Council buildings

Word of mouth

Participated before Other (please advise)

Q1

Page 1 of 17
Page 74

Agenda Item 7



WHAT DO YOU THINK ABOUT TRANSPORTATION & HIGHWAY INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES?

Roads being in good condition

Good pavements & footpaths

Good street lighting

Low levels of traffic & congestion

Good cycle routes/lanes & facilities

Safe roads

 (*Rights of Way, or RoW, are routes open to the public – such as ‘bridleways’ and 

footpaths – which are often in the countryside but can also be found in towns)

Low levels of local traffic pollution

What is important to you, our Customer? PLEASE TICK  ONE     ONLY FOR 

EACH ROW Not at all  

important

Q2
Fairly  

important

Very  

important

Not very  

important

Don’t

know

A good Rights of Way* network

Now, thinking about roads and transport in Sefton, how satisfied or dissatisfied are 

you with the following…? PLEASE TICK ONE     ONLY FOR EACH ROW
Q3

Very  
satisfied

Neither 
satisfied 

nor 
dissatisfied

Fairly  
satisfied

Fairly 
dissatisfied

Very 
dissatisfied

Rights of Way network

Levels of local traffic pollution

The condition of roads

Pavements & footpaths

Street lighting

Traffic levels & congestion

Cycle routes/lanes & facilities

Safety on roads

And, taking everything onto account, how satisfied or dissatisfied are you overall with 
Transportation & Highway Infrastructure services?

P

P

Page 2 of 17
Page 75

Agenda Item 7



Sefton is facing significant budget pressures, which are likely to continue over 
the coming years, and has to look at new and more efficient ways of doing things.  
To deal with the pressure on budgets, we have to consider where we should 
prioritise our efforts and spending, and spending less on some services may 

reduce the level of service

And for which of the following service areas do you think it is acceptable to 

reduce the level of service? PLEASE TICK     UP TO FIVE OPTIONSP

Management and maintenance of roads

Management and maintenance of pavements

Management and maintenance of street lighting

Management and maintenance of road drainage, gullies and drains

Management and maintenance of grass verges, trees and weed control

Services to improve road safety

Services to manage and reduce levels of traffic congestion

Management and maintenance of cycle paths and facilities

Management and maintenance of country paths and Rights of Way

Gritting of roads and pavements and clearance of snow

None of these

For which of the following service areas is it not acceptable to reduce the level of 

service? PLEASE TICK     UP TO FIVE OPTIONS
Q4

P

Management and maintenance of roads

Management and maintenance of pavements

Management and maintenance of street lighting

Management and maintenance of road drainage, gullies and drains

Management and maintenance of grass verges, trees and weed control

Services to improve road safety

Services to manage and reduce levels of traffic congestion

Management and maintenance of cycle paths and facilities

Management and maintenance of country paths and Rights of Way

Gritting of roads and pavements and clearance of snow

None of these

Q5

Page 3 of 17
Page 76

Agenda Item 7



WHAT DO YOU THINK ABOUT PAVEMENTS & PEDESTRIAN FACILITIES?

How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with the each of these within Sefton…? 

PLEASE TICK ONE     ONLY FOR EACH ROW
Q6

P

The provision of pavements

The condition of pavements

The cleanliness of pavements

Direction signposts for 

pedestrians

Drop kerb crossing points (e.g. 

for pushchairs or wheelchairs)

Provision of safe crossing points

Pavements being kept clear of 

obstructions (e.g. parked cars)

Very  
satisfied

Neither 
satisfied 

nor 
dissatisfied

Fairly  
satisfied

Fairly 
dissatisfied

Very 
dissatisfied

WHAT DO YOU THINK ABOUT ROADWORKS

Thinking about roadworks in Sefton, how satisfied or dissatisfied are you with…? 

PLEASE TICK ONE     ONLY FOR EACH ROW Neither 
satisfied 

nor 
dissatisfied

Very 
dissatisfied

Q7
P

Notice of roadworks before they 
happen

Efforts to reduce delays to traffic 

(e.g. carrying out works at night)

Time taken to complete 
roadworks

Signposting of road diversions

Availability of information to find 
out about roadworks 
(e.g. helpline, website)

Very  
satisfied

Fairly  
satisfied

Fairly 
dissatisfied

Efforts to minimise nuisance to 
residents caused by roadworks 
(e.g. noise, dust etc.)

The management of roadworks 
overall

Page 4 of 17
Page 77

Agenda Item 7



WHAT DO YOU THINK ABOUT THE CONDITION OF ROADS & PAVEMENTS?

How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with the each of these within Sefton…? 

PLEASE TICK ONE     ONLY FOR EACH ROW

Condition of road surfaces

Cleanliness of roads

Condition of road markings 
(e.g. white lines)

Condition & cleanliness of 
road signs

Speed of repair to damaged 
roads & pavements

Quality of repair to damaged 
roads & pavements

Maintenance of highway verges, 
trees & shrubs

Weed killing on pavements 
& roads

Keeping drains clear and 
working

The provision of street lighting

Speed of repair to street lights

Very  
satisfied

Neither 
satisfied 

nor 
dissatisfied

Fairly  
satisfied

Fairly 
dissatisfied

Very 
dissatisfied

Q8
P

The provision of drains along the 
sides of roads

The provision of Rights of Way 
footpaths eg for walking or 
running

The provision of bridleways for 
horse riding and/or recreational 
cycling

Page 5 of 17
Page 78

Agenda Item 7



WHAT DO YOU THINK ABOUT THE CONDITION OF ROADS & PAVEMENTS?

P

Would you say that within Sefton, compared to a year ago, there are more 

potholes and damaged roads, there are fewer, or there has been no change in the 

number? PLEASE TICK ONE     ONLY

Q10

P

From  what you know or have heard, and compared to a year ago, would you say 

that Sefton is doing more to repair local roads, doing less, or about the same? 

PLEASE TICK ONE     ONLY

Q11

More
No 

Change
Fewer

Don’t know/
None of these

More
About 

the 
same

Less
Don’t know/

None of these

How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with the way Sefton…? 

PLEASE TICK ONE     ONLY FOR EACH ROW
Q9

P

Very 
dissatisfied

Deals with potholes & damaged 
roads

Deals with flooding on roads & 
pavements

Deals with obstructions on 
pavements 

Keeps roads clear of obstructions 
such as skips/scaffolding etc

Very  
satisfied

Neither 
satisfied 

nor 
dissatisfied

Fairly  
satisfied

Fairly 
dissatisfied

Cuts back overgrown hedges 
obstructing the highway or 
hiding road signage

Deals with mud on the road

Undertakes winter gritting & 
snow clearance

Provides information to 
residents on winter gritting 
& snow clearance 

Page 6 of 17
Page 79

Agenda Item 7



WHAT DO YOU THINK ABOUT ROAD SAFETY?

Neither 
satisfied 

nor 
dissatisfied

Thinking about the following, to what extent do you think there are too many, too 

few, or do you think there are the right amount in Sefton? 

PLEASE TICK ONE     ONLY FOR EACH ROW

Far 
too many

About the 
right amount

A little 
too many

A little 
too few

Far 
too few

Don’t
know

Cycle routes/lanes

Speed control measures 
(e.g. speed humps)

Street lights

Q13

P

How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with the following road safety aspects within 

Sefton…? PLEASE TICK ONE     ONLY FOR EACH ROW
Q12

P

Very  
satisfied

Fairly  
satisfied

Fairly 
dissatisfied

Very 
dissatisfied

Speed limits being right for 
local roads

The effectiveness of speed 
control measures (e.g. road 
humps)

The location of speed control 
measures

Safety of walking

Safety of cycling

Safety of children walking 
to school

Safety of children cycling 
to school

Road safety training/education 
given to drivers

Road safety training/education 
given to children

Controlled pedestrian facilities 
(e.g. pelican crossing, 
zebra crossing)

Page 7 of 17
Page 80

Agenda Item 7



How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with each of the following in Sefton…? 

PLEASE TICK ONE     ONLY FOR EACH ROW. 
Q14

WHAT DO YOU THINK ABOUT HOW WE MANAGE TRAFFIC?

Very  
satisfied

Neither 
satisfied 

nor 
dissatisfied

Fairly  
satisfied

Fairly 
dissatisfied

Very 
dissatisfied

Clarity of roadsigns

Location of permanent 
traffic lights

Waiting time at permanent 
traffic lights

Measures to tackle illegal 
on-street parking

Restrictions of parking on 
busy roads

Availability of Park & Ride 
schemes

The routes taken by heavy 
goods vehicles

P

Page 8 of 17
Page 81

Agenda Item 7



WHAT DO YOU THINK ABOUT CYCLING FACILITES?

HOW WELL INFORMED DO YOU FEEL?

*If yes, please answer the following question, Q16. If not, please go to Q17

Do you regularly use a bike?

Yes* No

Q15

Very  
satisfied

Neither 
satisfied 

nor 
dissatisfied

Fairly  
satisfied

Fairly 
dissatisfied

Very 
dissatisfied

How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with each of the following in Sefton…? 

PLEASE TICK ONE     ONLY FOR EACH ROW

The number of cycle routes/
cycle lanes provided

The location of the cycle routes/
cycle lanes provided

The condition of cycle routes/ 
cycle lanes

Cycle crossing facilities at road 
junctions & traffic signals

Cycle parking

Direction signs for cycle routes/
cycle lanes

Cycle route/cycle lane 
information such as maps etc.

Q16
P

Cycle training (e.g. at schools)

How well informed, if at all, do you feel about the following: 

PLEASE TICK ONE     ONLY 
Q17

P

Very well 
informed

Fairly well 
informed

Not very 
well informed

Not at 
All informed

Don’t
know

Local highways 
services in general

Local air quality

The action the Council 
is taking to repair local 
roads

Page 9 of 17
Page 82

Agenda Item 7



In which of these ways, if any, have you contacted the Council to report an issue 

or to make an enquiry in relation to the highway, over the last 12 months? 

PLEASE TICK         ALL THAT APPLY P

Q18

Not applicable

What would be your preferred way to receive the information and updates we 

provide? PLEASE TICK         ALL THAT APPLY 
Q20

P

By email Advertised in public places 
(via noticeboards, leaflets etc)

By social media 
(Facebook, Twitter etc) Via text to mobile phone

Via Council website

Via local free press

Posted direct to house

Local radio and TV 
broadcasts

Via app on mobile phone

Included with Council Tax 
information

Other

If you have contacted the Council over the last 12 months, how satisfied or 

dissatisfied were you with the following aspects relating to how your enquiry was 

handled? PLEASE TICK         ONE BOX ONLY FOR EACH ROW P

Q19

By phone (during 
normal office hours)

By phone (outside 
normal office hours)

Online (via the 
Council website)

By post (letter) By email
By personal visit to 
any Council office

Other (please advise)

Very  
satisfied

Neither 
satisfied 

nor 
dissatisfied

Fairly  
satisfied

Fairly 
dissatisfied

Very 
dissatisfied

Speed of response

Quality of response

Your enquiry /problem overall

Ease of contact

Professionalism of staff

WHAT DO YOU THINK ABOUT TRANSPORTATION & HIGHWAY INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES?

Page 10 of 17
Page 83

Agenda Item 7



TELL US ABOUT YOUR USE OF TRANSPORT

Finally, is there anything else you would like to add specifically in relation 

to questions asked within this survey?
Q21

Are you a resident of Sefton?Q22

Yes No

Page 11 of 17
Page 84

Agenda Item 7



INFORMATION IN RELATION TO THE GENERAL DATA PROTECTION 

REGULATIONS (GDPR)

How we will use your data

Any personal information that you provide to the Council as part of this consultation will 

be handled and used in compliance with the principles of the General Data Protection 

Regulations (EU 2016/679). Regardless of whether it is electronic or on paper it will be 

stored and processed securely, and deleted 2 years after the closing date. The 

information you provide will help the Council by contributing to the baseline set using 

the results from 2016 and 2017, and to see if your outlook has changed in relation to 

our transportation and highway infrastructure services.

We thank you for participating in this consultation and we value your contribution. We thank you for participating in this consultation and we value your contribution. 

The lawful basis on why we use this data

We collect and use this personal information for the performance of a task carried out in 

the public interest.

The Council also asks the equality monitoring questions to help it comply with the 

Equality Act 2010 to help us understand who is responding to the survey and to help us 

ensure that there is equality of opportunity for protected groups of people 

Confidentiality of data – Your contributions will be anonymised on receipt and your 

comments will then be used for research and consultation purposes. Your identity and 

contact details will not be published by us at any stage without your consent. 

We do not intend to share your personal data with a third party

Requesting access to your personal data

You have the right to: 

· Object to processing of personal data that is likely to cause, or is causing damage or 

distress 

· Prevent processing for the purposes of direct marketing 

· Object to decisions being taken by automated means 

· In certain circumstances, have inaccurate personal data rectified, blocked, erased or 

destroyed; and 

· The right to lodge a complaint with the supervisory authority (the Information 

Commissioner’s Office) 

· Withdraw consent for the processing 

For more information, please contact Catherine Larkin, Data Protection Officer at: 

E-mail: ino.information@sefton.gov.uk; Telephone: 0345 140 0845 

Officer contact: The contact for this consultation is Michelle Knox, T&HI Development & 

Monitoring Officer; E-mail:THISupport@sefton.gov.uk; Telephone: 0151 934 4226

Please tick to confirm you have read this information: 

Page 12 of 17
Page 85

Agenda Item 7



FURTHER CONTACT – CAN YOU HELP US AGAIN IN THE FUTURE?

Title: Name:

Address:

Postcode:

Email address:

Please indicate below if you would be willing to be contacted again, in the next 

12 months, and provide your views on:

Sefton’s Transportation and Highway Infrastructure services?

Any other survey regarding Sefton Council?Q24

Q23

*If you have ticked “Yes” to either question above, please provide your 

contact details below:
Q25

Yes* No

Yes* No

Sefton Council would like to thank you very much for taking the time to 

participate in this consultation exercise

Page 13 of 17
Page 86

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14 of 17
Page 87

Agenda Item 7



Finally please provide some details about yourself

Answer as much or as little as you want.  We will not share your personal 

data. However, we will share the anonymised results of the consultation with 

partners who we work with to deliver local services.  Your contributions will be 

anonymised on receipt and your comments will then be used for research and 

consultation purposes.   Your identity will not be published by us at any stage 

without your consent unless we are obliged to do so by law

1. Please tell us the first part of your postcode 

(the first 3 or 4 letters and numbers

2. Are you

Male Female

3. How old are you?

30-39

60-69

40-49

70-79

4. Disability :  Do you have any of the following (please tick all that apply):

18-29

Physical Impairment Visual Impairment

Learning Difficulty Hearing Impairment/deaf

Mental health/mental distress
Long term illness that 

affects your daily activity

Other (please specify)

50-59

80-84 85+

Page 15 of 17
Page 88

Agenda Item 7



Please read the following statement …

 If you have ticked any of the boxes above, or you have cancer, diabetes 

or HIV this would be classed as ‘disability’ under the legislation.  Do you 

consider yourself to be ‘disabled’?

Yes No

5. Ethnicity – do you identify as…...

Asian:

Bangladeshi Indian

Pakastani Other Asian background

Black:

African British

Caribbean Other black background

Chinese

Chinese Other Chinese background

Mixed Ethnic Background:

Asian and White Black African and White

Black Caribbean and White Other mixed

White

British

Irish

Welsh

Latvian

Other White background

English

Scottish

Polish

Gypsy/Traveller

Page 16 of 17
Page 89

Agenda Item 7



The following questions are a little more personal and you can choose 

to stop here if you wish, however it would be really helpful if you would 

consent to complete … 

6. Do you have a religion or belief?

Buddhist Christian

Hindu Jewish

Yes No

If you ticked yes, please tick one of the following

Muslim Sikh

No religion

Other – please specify

7. How would you describe your sexual orientation?

Heterosexual Bisexual

Gay Lesbian

8. Do you live with the gender you were given at birth?

Yes No

Page 17 of 17
Page 90

Agenda Item 7



Agenda Item 8 

Page 1 of 13 
 

 

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 
 
Date: 17 May 2019 
 
Title: Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity – 

SEND Joint Commissioning Strategy Co-production and Engagement 
Process 

 
Report of:  Jayne Vincent, Consultation & Engagement Lead 
 

 
1. Purpose of the Report 
 

1.1 To receive information regarding the plans to coproduce the SEND Joint 
Commissioning Strategy and engagement process. 
 

 
2. Background 
 
 2.1 The main purpose of the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is 

to coordinate and ensure the quality of public engagement and 
consultation, in accordance with the standards for engagement and 
consultation. 

 
3. SEND Joint Commissioning Strategy 
 
 3.1 Part 3 of the Children and Families Act 2014 provides statutory guidance 

for local commissioners who are required to work together in the 
interests of children and young people with special education needs and 
disabilities (SEND).  The SEND Code of Practice lays out the statutory 
duties which must be considered.  The Local Authority and its partner 
CCGs are required to act consistently with the joint commissioning 
arrangements for SEND, to keep arrangements under review and to 
update them.   

 
  The purpose of the strategy is to explain the current mechanism for joint 

commissioning arrangements in Sefton, between the Council, including 
Public Health and the two CCG’s Southport & Formby and South Sefton 
and have a single approach which will inform the future planning of 
commissioning and delivery of SEND services in Sefton. 

 
 3.2 The Director for Social Care and Health has established an Operational 

Group to oversee the refresh of the Strategy, which to date has included 
commissioning Edge Hill University to undertake an evaluation of the 
Special Educational Needs and Disability provision throughout Sefton. 
The evaluation will inform policy, strategy, prioritisation and development 
of activities and services related to the needs of children and young 
people (C/YP) aged under 25 years with a special educational need or 
disability. 

Page 91

Agenda Item 8



 

Page 2 of 13 
 

 
 3.3 Four key events were scheduled to incorporate- parent and carers/ staff 

stakeholders and C/YP. Events were facilitated with the support of parent 
and carers/ key staff stakeholders and the Sefton inclusion team. 

  Key areas of focus for the consultation included: 
 

▪ Education 
▪ Health 
▪ Local Communities 
▪ Housing/ where people live 
▪ C/YP aspirations/ wishes  
▪ How young people want to have their voice heard 

 
  Participants were asked to consider these areas in relation to priorities 

for current and future provision. 
 
 3.4 The findings will be written up by Edge Hill University and the Sefton 

Inclusion Team and should be available late April/early May.  This will 
then be available, along with additional qualitative feedback and datasets 
to provide strategic insight for the development of the draft SEND Joint 
Commissioning Strategy. 

 
 3.5 The SEND Operational Group has also set up a Multi-agency co-

production Task & Finish Group, that also includes parent and carer 
representatives to co-produce the SEND Joint Commissioning Strategy 
and engagement processes. 

 
 
 

4.  Co-production 

4.1     The Deputy Chief Executive from Sefton CVS and the Consultation and 
Engagement Lead from the Council drafted an Engagement Framework 
to guide how the Strategy will be co-produced (Appendix 1).  Guidance 
produced by the Council for Disabled Children (CDC) and NEL 
Healthcare Consultancy has been used to help develop an approach 
that seeks to work together for outcome-based commissioning. 

 
4.2     The Task & Finish Group had its first meeting in April and in addition to 

reviewing the proposed Engagement Framework, considered how the 

Multi-Agency Task Group would work together.  The Parent and Carer 

Forum are already using some co-production principles/quality indicators 

developed by Rochdale Council with Contact (Appendix 2) as part of 

working together to co-produce the Education, Health and Care Plans 

and as such the SEND Continuous Improvement Board have agreed to 

look at working with the Sefton Parent and Carer Forum and other 

parents and carers and stakeholders to see how the co-

production/quality indicators should work in Sefton.  

Page 92

Agenda Item 8



 

Page 3 of 13 
 

4.3 The approach that will be undertaken will be developed in accordance 

with these quality indicators which will be at the heart of the process to 

ensure inclusivity and transparency. 

4.4 A stakeholder map (Appendix 3) has been produced by the task and 

finish group to help identify the key audiences; some of which have 

recently been involved in the insight work and as part of other relevant 

consultations.  The Task & Finish group will begin to look at the 

methodology and were appropriate, the engagement methods will also 

be delivered in partnership with the membership of the co-production 

task and finish group and build on existing mechanisms. The 

engagement process may require additional resource however and the 

Task and Finish Group will consider how best to engage within the 

resources available and report any additional requirements to the SEND 

Operational Group. 

4.5 The engagement process will build on the initial insight work carried out 

by Edge Hill University and the Sefton Inclusion Team.  The engagement 

will be part of the on-going continual engagement with parents and 

carers, children and young people and stakeholders as part of the 

commissioning process going forward. 

5. Legal Department Comments 

 
 5.1 Sefton’s Legal Department has considered the consultation plans 

contained in this report and has no comments to make. 
 
5. Recommendations 
 
 
 5.1 The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is recommended to: 
  
  a) Appraise the Engagement Process and Co-production Quality 

Indicators for the SEND Joint Commissioning Strategy. 
 
  b) Request that the officers return to the Panel to provide details of 

their feedback and evaluation resulting from the above consultation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 93

Agenda Item 8



 

Page 4 of 13 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR USE 
 
Each box contains a form field for you to type in text or select an option by clicking it with 
your mouse.  Some of the boxes show information to help you complete the field when you 
place the cursor on the “click here …” field. 
 
When you have completed the form, save it as a Word document. 

 

Project Title: SEND Joint Commissioning Strategy 

Is your project linked to: (please choose from the drop-down below) 

A new service - please attach a new Equalitiess Impact Assessment 

Lead officer: Jayne Vincent Contact 
no  

0151 934 3733 

Designation Commissioning Support E-mail Jayne.vincent@sefton.gov.uk 

How does your consultation relate to the Council’s Core Purpose (please tick) 

x Protect the most vulnerable 

x Facilitate confident and resilient communities 

x Commission, broker and provide core services 

 Place – Leadership and Influencer 

 Drivers of change and reform 

 Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity 

 Greater income for social investment 

 Cleaner, Greener 

Which of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s Priorities does your Consultation relate 
to (please tick) 

X 
Ensure all children have a positive start in life  
 

 
Support people early to prevent and treat avoidable illnesses and reduce 
inequalities in health  
 

Page 94

Agenda Item 8



 

Page 5 of 13 
 

 
Support older people and those with long term conditions and disabilities to 
remain independent and in their own homes  

 
Promote positive mental health and wellbeing  
 

 
Seek to address the wider social, environmental and economic issues that 
contribute to poor health and wellbeing  



X 
Build capacity and resilience to empower and strengthen communities 

Does this consultation relate to an item on the Forward Plan?  If so which one? 

Not currently 

Other partners involved (please state if internal or external to the Council) 

Internal – representatives from: 

• Public Health 

• Children with Disabilities Team 

• Sefton Inclusion Team 

• Strategic Support 

• Crosby High School 

• Education Service 

• Localities Team 
External – representatives from: 

• Sefton Parent & Carer Forum 

• South Sefton and Southport & Formby CCGs 

• Designated Clinical Officer/Merseycare 

• Sefton CVS 

(Planned) start 
date 

(Planned) end 
date: 

What is the allocated budget? 

TBC TBC From existing resources 

Background/Rationale 

Part 3 of the Children and Families Act 2014 provides statutory guidance for local 
commissioners who are required to work together in the interests of children and young 
people with special education needs and disabilities (SEND).  The SEND Code of Practice 
lays out the statutory duties which must be considered.  The Local Authority and its partner 
CCGs are required to act consistently with the joint commissioning arrangements for 
SEND, to keep arrangements under review and to update them.   
 
The purpose of the strategy is to explain the current mechanism for joint commissioning 
arrangements in Sefton, between the Council, including Public Health and the two CCG’s 
Southport & Formby and South Sefton and have a single approach which will inform the 
future planning of commissioning and delivery of SEND services in Sefton. 
 
The engagement will build on the recent activity undertaken with children and young 
people and parents and carers as part of gathering Insight for the needs assessment, 
which also included how young people said they wanted their voices heard. 

Page 95

Agenda Item 8



 

Page 6 of 13 
 

 
 
 

Aims & Objectives 

The objectives of the engagement process are to: 

1. Make sure that as many people as possible are aware of the process and how they 
can get involved. 

2. To confirm that the understanding of the needs for SEND children and young people 
are right through the identified draft Vision, priorities and outcomes 

3. To find out if there are any gaps in our understanding 
4. To use this process as the foundation for continuous dialogue and involvement 
5. To inform the future planning, commissioning and delivery of SEND services in 

Sefton. 
The engagement process will: 

• Develop a stakeholder map to prioritise key audiences to ensure full participation 

• Identify appropriate methods for different audiences that are creative and innovative 

• Ensure that any literature and supporting information is accessible to a wide 
audience and clearly communicated 

• Support the delivery of a range of stakeholder events, as appropriate, delivered in 
an inclusive manner and join up with other engagement activity, where appropriate, 
to avoid consultation fatigue 

• Provide opportunities to feedback and that the feedback is timely and responsive 

Target Audience 

Parents and Carers 

Children & Young people 

Partner organisations 

Workforce 

Methodology (Please also include any details of any accessible methods) 

Information in the Aiming High Newsletter 

Sefton Parent & Carer Forum 

Schools – enlisting the support of the Schools Council’s in specialist schools and working 
with SENCO’s in mainstream schools to engage parents and carers of children who attend 
the schools 

Coffee mornings in schools that are organised by the voluntary sector 

Information on the Local Offer 

On-line questionnaire and supporting information 

Standard power point presentation 

Standard focus group/stakeholder event format 

Summary of key messages for the draft Strategy 

Page 96

Agenda Item 8



 

Page 7 of 13 
 

Easy Read messages for the draft Strategy 

Easy Read version of the Survey 

Website and Intranet information 

Social media 

Communications Plan (If Council, please also contact Corporate Communications) 

 

Key Message Audience Method 

There is commitment to 
work with parents/carers, 
children and young people 
to develop the Strategy 
together  

Parents and carers & 
children and young people 

Accessible engagement 
events 

Accessible information 

The SEND Joint 
Commissioning Strategy will 
inform the future planning of 
SEND services for children 
and young people in Sefton 

All Standard power point 
presentation 

Information on the Local 
Offer, website and intranet 

Supporting information 

There will some 
commissioned activity in the 
draft Strategy that will not 
be consulted upon due to 
statutory requirements.  
This will be clearly 
communicated 

All Standard power point 
presentation 

Information on the Local 
Offer, website and intranet 

Supporting information 

   
 

Potential barriers to involvement and action to overcome barriers 

There will be parents and carers who may not be available during the daytime, so 
consideration will be given to holding stakeholder events at different times of the day. 

Poor involvement due to inaccessible information will be overcome by having information in 
summary and accessible formats and all members of the multi-agency task group will have 
a standard briefing and presentation to use to engage respective audiences. 

Poor involvement due to lack of information of stakeholder events will be overcome by 
advertising the events well in advance using a range of communication mechanisms, 
including newsletters, website, social media. 

How will you protect the confidentiality of participants?  

The feedback from the engagement will be anonymised in reports and if any personal data 
is collected because of the survey or engagement events, this will be collected and stored 

Page 97

Agenda Item 8



 

Page 8 of 13 
 

in accordance with the GDPR Regulations (2018) 

How and when do you intend to report or publish the findings? 

.The findings will form part of a report to Cabinet and there will also be a summary 
feedback document for stakeholders, in appropriate formats 

Level and type of patient/public engagement (place a tick in all that apply) 

Tick Level Description 

X Informing 
Giving people information about something (a limited opportunity 
for them to be involved) 

X Consulting 
Getting people’s views to help you develop/change your 
services/plans 

X 
Deciding 
together 

Making decisions using patients’ and public’s views 

X Acting together 
Local people will be involved in making decisions and reviewing 
your plans/services 

 
Supporting local 
initiatives 

Local people will have the opportunity to lead, develop and 
deliver activities independently 

Does your project include: 

 Yes/No If No please explain 

Questionnaire 
(Please attach .  The Panel will 
not be able to consider your 
proposal if it is not available 
in advance for them to 
consider) 

NO This is to be devised and will be shared with 
panel members for comment prior to being 
used. 

There will also be an Easy Read version 

Other materials  
(i.e. promotional materials) 

Yes Supporting information to be devised 

A stakeholder map 
(a tool to help you identify your 
target audience – included in 
toolkit) 

Yes Attached. 

Reference to existing data or 
information that has already 
been completed  
(i.e. recent consultation/ 
research where results can be 
used to inform your 

yes Needs Assessment conducted by Edge Hill 
University (Feb – March 2019). 

Sefton Joint Strategic Needs Assessment – 
Children & Young People summary (2018) 

Preparation for adulthood events with Children 

Page 98

Agenda Item 8



 

Page 9 of 13 
 

consultation) and Young People (March 2019) 

Any other information you would like to provide? 

Click here to enter text. 

 

 

 

If you require further information please contact either Jayne Vincent on 0151 934 3733 

 
 
Signature of Project Lead: Jayne Vincent Date: 7 May 2019 
 
Manager Approval: Date: 
 
 

 
Please return this form electronically to:- 
 
Jayne.vincent@sefton.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SEND Joint Commissioning Co-Production Framework  
(Version 2 of the Framework after feedback from the SEND Operational Group) 

Page 99

Agenda Item 8

mailto:Jayne.vincent@sefton.gov.uk


 

Page 10 of 13 
 

 
The proposal is to follow the guidance produced by the Council for Disabled Children 
(CDC) and NEL Healthcare Consultancy to support an outcome based 
commissioning approach as we develop Sefton’s SEND Joint Commissioning 
Strategy.  At the centre of this approach is the commitment to work with 
parents/carers/ children and young people, partners and our workforce to coproduce 
the Strategy to inform further discussions and strategic planning and the consultation 
and engagement processes required to enable the Strategy to reflect the key areas 
of feedback and opportunities for on-going involvement. 
It is suggested to establish a small Task & Finish Co-production Planning Group that 
includes the following: 

• Sefton Consultation and engagement (Jayne Vincent/Gill Cowley) 

• Parents/Carers 

• A representative from CCG (Peter Wong) 

• The Designated Clinical Officer/Merseycare (Emma Powell) 

• A representative from Education 

• A representative from CWD Social Care Team  

• A representative from schools (Toni Oxton, Crosby High School) 

• Representative from Sefton CVS 

• Representative from Public Health/Edge Hill 

• Young people representation 

 
The Task & Finish Group will have its initial meeting in February to agree the 
principles of working co-productively, identify what’s in scope, who would need to be 
engaged and design the engagement plan.  This group would report progress and 
any key issues to the SEND Joint Commissioning Operational Group. 
Following the initial tasks of the Task and Finish Co-Production Planning Group, it is 
suggested that the group consider the following as a guide for development: 
 
Stage 1 – Developing a Vision                  Feb – April 19 

• Understand insight and progress 

• Presentation of early findings of Needs Assessment from  

Edge Hill University to Co-production Planning group, 
including the key issues/themes for each group  

• Report into Operational Group     May 19 

• Submit Proposal to Public Engagement and Consultation  

Panel          May 19 
    

• Wider co-production engagement events on draft Vision  TBC 

and outcomes including child and youth voice to         
understand what’s important and the change that is needed                 

• Report to Operational Group     TBC 

   
Stage 2 – Agree a model of care to deliver the outcome 

• Identify key lines of enquiry/services that lend    TBC 

themselves to new approaches, using the research 

• Develop draft model of care (for specific areas)                

Page 100

Agenda Item 8



 

Page 11 of 13 
 

• Explore indicators 

 
Stages 3 – Implications for Workforce 

• Understand current skill mix 

• Understand required skill mix     TBC 

• Develop capacity for new approaches 

 
Stage 4 – Financial Modelling               

• Alternative commissioning models     TBC 

 
A suggested approach to use to work through the five Key Stages outlined by CDC 
and NEL is the 4-D Model: 

Discover Understand 
demand/hidden demand 
Understand experiences 
– what works/doesn’t 
work 
How things can be 
improved How people are 
involved in the service – 
customer journey 
 

Data and intelligence 
SEND Action Plan 
progress 
Consultation and 
research feedback 
Service evaluations 
Workforce feedback 
Complaints 
 

Define Vision & Outcomes Based on what’s 
important and what will 
make a difference 

Develop New Models of Care and 
Indicators 

Whole system approach 
 

Deliver Monitoring processes 
involving parents/carers 
and young people 

Monitoring processes co-
produced  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 101

Agenda Item 8



 

Page 12 of 13 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 102

Agenda Item 8



 

Page 13 of 13 
 

 

 

 

Page 103

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

School Nurseries 

 

Special Schools & Schools 

Council’s 

 

South Sefton & Southport CCGs 

 

Public Health 

  

  

Mainstream schools 
 

 

Pupil Referral Units and 

Alternative Provision 

 

0 – 19 Services (Health visitors, 

School Nurses) 

 

NHS Providers  

 
 

Elected Members 

 

 

Colleges 

 
 

SENCO’S 

 
 

Sefton Council CEO 
 

 

Sensis 

  

Career Connect 
 

YOT 

 

New Beginnings 

 

Sefton Parent & Carer Forum 

 

 
 

Sensis 

 

Merseytravel 
 

Young Carers 

 

Social Care/Early Help 

 

NHS England 

 
 

 

  

Sefton Economic Forum 

 

 

 

Sefton@ Work 

 

 

Buddy Up 

 

 

Special Schools Forum 

 

Children & families not in school 

– Elective Home Educated and 

Out of school 

 

 

Regional Post 16 group 

 

 

Community Centres & Family 

Wellbeing Centres 

 

 

Chamelions 

Parents who attend activities at 

special schools 

 

Parents of young adults with 

additional needs and disabilities 

 

 

SENDIAS Advocacy Service 

 

GP’s 

 

 

Public & Healthwatch 

 

Condition specific groups i.e. 

Autism, ADHD, Up on Downs 

 

Coffee Mornings at Netherton CC 

& Parenting 2000, Rowan Park & 

Prestfield Schools 

 

MAD Group 

 

     LOW STAKE                                                                                                                                                                         HIGH STAKE 
 

H
I
G

H
 I

N
F

L
U

E
N

C
E

 
L
O

W
 I

N
F

L
U

E
N

C
E

 

To inform (Keep up to date) To consult To engage and partner with 

SEND JOINT COMMISSIONING STRATEGY ENGAGEMENT PLAN – INITIAL STAKEHOLDER MAP 

P
age 105

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

SEND Joint Commissioning Co-Production Framework  

(Version 2 of the Framework after feedback from the SEND Operational Group) 

The proposal is to follow the guidance produced by the Council for Disabled Children 

(CDC) and NEL Healthcare Consultancy to support an outcome based 

commissioning approach as we develop Sefton’s SEND Joint Commissioning 

Strategy.  At the centre of this approach is the commitment to work with 

parents/carers/ children and young people, partners and our workforce to coproduce 

the Strategy to inform further discussions and strategic planning and the consultation 

and engagement processes required to enable the Strategy to reflect the key areas 

of feedback and opportunities for on-going involvement. 

It is suggested to establish a small Task & Finish Co-production Planning Group that 

includes the following: 

• Sefton Consultation and engagement (Jayne Vincent/Gill Cowley) 

• Parents/Carers 

• A representative from CCG (Peter Wong) 

• The Designated Clinical Officer/Merseycare (Emma Powell) 

• A representative from Education 

• A representative from CWD Social Care Team  

• A representative from schools (Toni Oxton, Crosby High School) 

• Representative from Sefton CVS 

• Representative from Public Health/Edge Hill 

• Young people representation 

 

The Task & Finish Group will have its initial meeting in February to agree the 

principles of working co-productively, identify what’s in scope, who would need to be 

engaged and design the engagement plan.  This group would report progress and 

any key issues to the SEND Joint Commissioning Operational Group. 

Following the initial tasks of the Task and Finish Co-Production Planning Group, it is 

suggested that the group consider the following as a guide for development: 

 

Stage 1 – Developing a Vision                  Feb – April 19 

• Understand insight and progress 

• Presentation of early findings of Needs Assessment from  

Edge Hill University to Co-production Planning group, 

including the key issues/themes for each group  

• Report into Operational Group     May 19 

• Submit Proposal to Public Engagement and Consultation  

Panel          May 19 

    

• Wider co-production engagement events on draft Vision  TBC 

Page 107

Agenda Item 8



 

 

and outcomes including child and youth voice to         

understand what’s important and the change that is needed                 

• Report to Operational Group     TBC 

   

Stage 2 – Agree a model of care to deliver the outcome 

• Identify key lines of enquiry/services that lend    TBC 

themselves to new approaches, using the research 

• Develop draft model of care (for specific areas)                

• Explore indicators 

 

Stages 3 – Implications for Workforce 

• Understand current skill mix 

• Understand required skill mix     TBC 

• Develop capacity for new approaches 

 

Stage 4 – Financial Modelling               

• Alternative commissioning models     TBC 

 

A suggested approach to use to work through the five Key Stages outlined by CDC 

and NEL is the 4-D Model: 

Discover Understand 
demand/hidden demand 
Understand experiences 
– what works/doesn’t 
work 
How things can be 
improved How people are 
involved in the service – 
customer journey 
 

Data and intelligence 
SEND Action Plan 
progress 
Consultation and 
research feedback 
Service evaluations 
Workforce feedback 
Complaints 
 

Define Vision & Outcomes Based on what’s 
important and what will 
make a difference 

Develop New Models of Care and 
Indicators 

Whole system approach 
 

Deliver Monitoring processes 
involving parents/carers 
and young people 

Monitoring processes co-
produced  

 

 

Page 108

Agenda Item 8



 

Quality Indicators for Co-production and Inclusive Practice

Everybody’s business

Introduction

Good quality co-production and participation is required by the Children and Families Act 2014 
and subsequent SEND legislation. However, this process and its success depends on 
organisational cultures fostering and embedding this approach. 

These Quality Indicators have been produced to help groups, organisations and partnerships 
identify and develop good practice in how they work together in co-production.

Evidence shows that when local area partners actively work towards these Quality Indicators 
together, a culture of inclusion and co-production begins to thrive, trust strengthens, 
relationships flourish and better outcomes are generated for all.

Page 109

Agenda Item 8



What is co-production and inclusion?

Co-production is an equal and reciprocal relationship where everyone’s knowledge and skills 
are used to create better outcomes. 

Inclusion is a universal human right that is about embracing all people, irrespective of race, 
gender, disability or other attribute which can be perceived as different.

About this document

This document sets out a Quality Indicators action-planning and evaluation framework. 

These Quality Indicators draw on the four principles of co-production. These principles were 
developed by Rotherham parent carers, young people and families through Alliance member 
Genuine Partnerships. The framework was devised in partnership with Contact. 

The four principles required to create a good quality of co-production and inclusion are:

Page 110

Agenda Item 8



Using the Quality Indicators 

Step 1: Reflect on and discuss each Quality Indicator and consider how the principles of 
co-production: 

 feature in your vision/mission statement

 are modelled and promoted by leaders

 are included within your strategic plan

 are evident in your organisational values

 impact on organisational processes and methodology

 are embedded in recruitment processes

 determine joint decision-making

 are reflected in commissioning criteria

 are integrated in your Local Offer

 affect budgets and investments

 help shape workforce development priorities

Step 2: Consider:

 how well are you doing locally?

 what does good look like to you?

 what are your examples of best practice?

 what is happening already?

 what could be better?

 how are you thinking about these questions in co-production?

 what do you need to do next?

Page 111

Agenda Item 8



WELCOME & CARE

What should it feel like? What’s going well in [your Local 
Area name]…

What could be better [your Local 
Area name]…

All voices are heard and valued

Expectations are communicated early
and with clarity 

Supportive communities are built in 
partnership

Environments feel happy and secure 
for everyone

Confidence, well-being and self-esteem
are nurtured

Strengths and achievements are 
emphasised

Responses are always kind

Give examples of good practice 
within the Local Area from 
organisations, departments, 
services and school/settings

Give examples

[Type a quote from the document or the summary of an 
interesting point. You can position the text box 
anywhere in the document. Use the Drawing Tools tab 
to change the formatting of the pull quote text box.]10

Great 

5 OK

0  
Not 
Great

How are we doing?

P
age 112

A
genda Item

 8



NEXT STEPS

What needs to happen now?

What will this involve?

How will this be done in co-production?

P
age 113

A
genda Item

 8



VALUE & INCLUDE

What should it feel like? What’s going well in [your Local 
Area name]…

What could be better in [your Local 
Area name]…

 
A ‘can do’ approach is the norm


Decision making processes involve 
the people they are about, or affect 


Needs are identified early and 
involvement of all partners is 
welcomed at every stage


Information about strengths and 
needs are shared, with permission, 
and with all who need to know

Everyone tries to have the right 
knowledge, understanding and 
skills to respond constructively to 
different strengths and needs

 Responses to individual needs and 
 changing circumstances are 
 creative and flexible 

 Everyone is involved in the 
 development of policies, systems 
 and values

Give examples of good practice 
within the Local Area from 
organisations, departments, services 
and school/settings

Give examples

How are we doing?

10
Great

5

0  
Not 
Great

P
age 114

A
genda Item

 8



NEXT STEPS

What needs to happen now?

What will this involve?

How will this be done in co-production?

P
age 115

A
genda Item

 8



COMMUNICATE

What should it feel like? What’s going well in [your Local Area 
name]…

What could be better in [your Local 
Area name]…

Views and involvement are always 
sought

Listening is calm and respectful
 
Follow up responses are timely 
and constructive

Time and space is made available 
to ensure everyone’s voice is 
heard in a way that suits them 

Information is given in good time 
and in an accessible format taking 
into account individual needs

Language is positive and 
constructive 

Agreed actions are regularly
reviewed and evaluated with all 
partners

Give examples of good practice within 
the Local Area from organisations, 
departments, services and 
school/settings

Give examples

How are we doing?

10
Great 

5

0  
Not 
Great

P
age 116

A
genda Item

 8



NEXT STEPS

What needs to happen now?

What will this involve?

How will this be done in co-production?

P
age 117

A
genda Item

 8



Partnership

What should it feel like? What’s going well in [your Local Area 
name]… 

What could be better in [your Local 
Area name] …

There are opportunities for all 
partners to feedback in order to 
improve everyone’s experience 

Everyone is an equal partner and 
their contribution is valued 

Co-production and participation 
in individual and strategic 
decision making is actively 
encouraged

Partners work well together to 
develop plans, set targets and 
create and deliver specific 
programmes

Give examples of good practice within 
the Local Area from organisations, 
departments, services and 
school/settings

Give examples

How are we doing?

10
Great 

5

0  
Not 
Great

P
age 118

A
genda Item

 8



NEXT STEPS

What needs to happen now?

What will this involve?

How will this be done in co-production?

P
age 119

A
genda Item

 8



For further information and resources on co-production, please visit Contact’s website at www.contact.org.uk, or email Contact’s parent carer 
participation team at parent.participation@contact.org.uk.   

To find out more about the work of Genuine Partnerships and the four principles of co-production visit www.genuinepartnerships.co.uk. 

  

Contact 209 - 211 City Road London EC1V 1JN T: 020 7608 8700 E: info@contact.org.uk contact.org.uk 
Contact is a trading name of Contact. Charity registered in England and Wales (284912) and Scotland (SC039169). Company limited by guarantee registered in England and Wales (1633333). 
VAT registration GB 749 3846 82. 

P
age 120

A
genda Item

 8

http://www.contact.org.uk/
mailto:parent.participation@contact.org.uk
http://www.genuinepartnerships.co.uk/


Agenda Item 9 

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 
Date: 17th May 2019 

Title: Sefton’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2020-2025 and Joint 
Strategic Needs Assessment – Consultation and Engagement 
Update 

Report of:  Helen Armitage  - Public Health Consultant (07816066317 -
helen.armitage@sefton.gov.uk) 
June McGill, Strategic Support Officer (0151 934 4604) 

1. Purpose of the Report

1.1 To update Members of the Panel and seek additional feedback with
regard to the consultation and engagement process for the refresh of 
the Sefton Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2020-2025.    

2. Background

2.1 At its meeting on 15th March 2019 the Panel considered the
consultation and engagement proposals for the refresh of the Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy including the methodology, the proposed 
stakeholders and timetable. 

2.2 The Panel agreed the proposal but requested that the proposed 
questions be brought to the Panel in May. 

2.3 Section 3 below summarises:- 

a) how our Strategy and engagement proposal has further developed
since March, building on the insights from a stakeholder
engagement event and discussions at the Health and Wellbeing
Board Sub-Group.

b) Proposed changes to the eventual presentation of the strategy
document to further improve accessibility and impact and what
this means for our engagement plans

2.4 Section 4 sets below out: 

a) More detailed proposals for the questionnaire content,
engagement strategy and timelines

b) A request for panel feedback on the inclusion of prioritisation
questions and additional questions (4.4)

Page 121

Agenda Item 9

mailto:helen.armitage@sefton.gov.uk


3. Refresh of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy – progress and 
developments 

  
3.1 A large stakeholder event took place on April 10th. A broad range of 

leaders received presentations and participated in facilitated 
discussions on the themes of population health priorities and 
collaborative working.  

  
3.2 This was a valuable opportunity to gather feedback on the JSNA 

priorities proposed in the published JSNA 2018 Highlights document. 
Recurrent themes included; 

 
• Children and young people - need to develop whole family 

approaches to address wellbeing, personal strengths and growth 
and socio-economic challenges 

• Social and wider determinants of health - feedback recognised 
the impact of anti-social behaviour, crime, in-work and out of work 
poverty and debt, risk factors for isolation and loneliness 

• Mental health and wellbeing, highlighting the strong two-way 
links to chronic physical health problems, unhealthy behaviours, 
isolation and the need for a system that supports the individual 

• People with complex needs - the extent of collaborative working 
that is needed; approaches that enable autonomy, self-care and 
independence seen as key 

• Ageing well - prevention and management of frailty was 
highlighted as an important need. ‘Dying well’ was a theme that 
contributors wanted to see recognised in a Life Course approach 

 
3.3 As a result of these key insights we now propose to, 
 

• Adopt a Life Course Framework based on Start Well, Live Well, 
Age Well  
 

• Include cross-cutting themes summarised as, 
 
o Prevention in everything we do 

 
o Mental wellbeing is the bedrock of better health 

 
o Specific action to narrow health inequalities is essential 

 
To note, a very positive insight from the stakeholder event 
highlighted the need to look beyond spatial, socio-economic 
health inequalities and also address poor health outcomes in 
other groups e.g. asylum seeker and refugee community, people 
with learning disability, people who are LGBT, ex-offenders, and 
people with mental health conditions. This reinforces feedback 
already provided by the panel in March on this issue and 
implications for our engagement strategy. 

 

Page 122

Agenda Item 9



 
 
 3.2 The current Health and Wellbeing Strategy is shaped around a vision, 

four strategic priorities, 6 objectives, 30 outcomes and 20 promises. 
The HWBS sub-group has reviewed the statutory context and purpose 
of the JSNA and HWBS, the current and alternative formats, and 
policy guidance.  

 
  This reflective review has led the sub-group to explore a simplified use 

of language coupled to a stronger narrative from the JSNA on assets, 
strengths and needs. The proposed structure will comprise: 

 
• A revised vision that aligns to the Sefton 2030 Vision 
• An overarching aim to improve health for all and narrow 

inequalities 
• Selected 5-year ambitions, that build on our current strategic 

objectives grouped across the life course and tied into evidence of 
strengths, needs and opportunities for change 

• A positive concept of health centred on its four building blocks: 
social and wider determinants, our places and communities, 
health behaviours and risk factors, health and care services 

• Principles and values, including public involvement and 
accountability 

• Statement on mechanisms for turning strategy into change 
• Statement on the role of the Health and Wellbeing Board, 

Governance and monitoring   
 

 3.3  With this proposal in mind, the purpose of the 12-week engagement 
detailed below is to find out whether people agree with the ‘big issues’ 
we recognise as priorities from evidence in the JSNA. These big 
issues cover not only health needs, but also health and wellbeing-
related needs across our four health building blocks for people of all 
ages. It will invite people to comment on Big Issues which aren’t 
represented or need to be changed. 

 
 3.4 This information will be used to develop a draft strategy including 

suggested ambitions that the Health and Wellbeing Board will use to 
galvanise and focus the energy and efforts of all those with a stake in 
population health. The draft strategy will be subject to a further four- 
week period of engagement, which seek feedback on these key 
ambitions and the language, relevance, and meaning conveyed in the 
strategy as a whole.  

 
  

Page 123

Agenda Item 9



4. Consultation and Engagement – Questions/Questionnaire 
 
 4.1 As previously proposed this engagement will build on the successful 

toolkit and cascade strategy used in the last round of JSNA and 
HWBS engagement.  The online questionnaire will be the main 
engagement tool; a simple presentation and discussion schedule will 
enable professionals and community members to participate, capture 
and submit feedback on these questions in a group setting if this is 
more appropriate. 

   
 4.2 It remains our intention to use our existing network of stakeholders 

and meetings to deliver engagement activity rather than setting up 
bespoke events. We will work closely with partners including 
Healthwatch, Community and Voluntary sector, with particular focus 
on enabling the views of groups which stand to gain the most from this 
strategy, including young people. 

 
 4.3 It is proposed that the questionnaire will be available in a number of 

different formats:- 
 
  a) Via the Council’s consultation and engagement e-platform – this 

will be the primary methodology. 
 
  b) In hard copy format for those who do not have access to a 

computer or who would prefer to give their answers in hard copy. 
 
  c) In accessible formats which will include an easy read workbook 

for people with learning disabilities, large print, and audio 
versions. 

 
  The questionnaire will also include the standard equality questions 

which will enable analysis of the findings across the protected 
characteristics to determine if there are any differences in need for our 
hard to reach groups. 

 
 4.2 The questions will be framed around the whole life approach in the 

following categories:- 
 
  Start Well and Grow Well 
  Live Well and Work Well 
  Age Well and Die Well 
 
 4.3 Each section will contain background information from the JSNA which 

highlights areas where Sefton are doing well and those where there 
needs to be improvement.  We will use similar questions to those 
which we asked for the last major consultation exercise, including 
asking people to identify their top priority in each section.  This means 
that we can undertake analysis to see if people’s priorities have 
changed or if there are new priorities that are emerging. 

 

Page 124

Agenda Item 9



 4.4 Accompanying information will clearly set out what a Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy is for, how it is used to improve health, why we 
need to develop a new one, and how participation and feedback will 
be used to make it better. 

   
  The purpose of the questionnaire will be presented as in 3.3.  The 

intention for further engagement on the draft strategy, including 
elements indicated in 3.2 will be made clear with an early invitation to 
opt-in included in the questionnaire. 

   
  The questions will be framed around the Life Course approach in the 

following categories:- 
 
  Start Well and Grow Well 
  Live Well and Work Well 
  Age Well and Die Well 
 
 4.3 Each section will contain the relevant supporting information from the 

JSNA chapters on Health, Children, Vulnerable Adults, Lifestyle, 
Wider Determinants and Population Forecast chapters to evidence 
areas where Sefton is doing well and those where change and 
improvement is most needed.   

   
 4.4 The indicative outline below uses the question format from the 

previous JSNA/HWBS engagement, which asks people to state 
whether they agree or disagree with the things we need to improve 
and to select one of these as a priority. 

  
4.4   The panel is asked to note that the question content is indicative and 

may be revised. In particular the panel is asked for its views on: 
 

• Proposed structure 
• How questions are formulated 
• Length of questionnaire 
• Whether it is advisable to retain the prioritisation question 
• Inclusion of additional information questions to explore the 

associations people make with the terms health and wellbeing, 
since research has shown that the ‘public health’ wider 
determinants concept is different to the concept of the general 
public and some professional stakeholders. 

 

 

  

Page 125

Agenda Item 9



4.4 Start Well and Grow Well 
 
 This section provides information about children’s educational attainment, 

health (including immunisation, lifestyles, obesity) teenage pregnancy, birth 
rates, smoking during pregnancy and breast feeding. 

 
 The following questions are proposed:- 
 
 Please answer once to let us know whether you agree or disagree and then 

tell us your top priority by selecting one statement only 
 

 Agree Disagree My top 
priority 

Increase the amount of physical activity that 
children and young people take part in each 
week 

   

Make it easier for children and young people 
to eat healthy food and to understand how to 
eat healthily  

   

All Children and young people have access to 
good quality schools and benefit from a good 
education, that helps them to achieve their 
ambitions 

   

Support mothers to breastfeed and support 
them to stop smoking during pregnancy 

   

Provide support for children and young 
people with mental health problems including 
alcohol, drugs and self harm 

   

Provide early and better support so that our 
children and young people can stay with their 
families where possible 

   

 
4.5 Live well and Work Well 
 
 This section will focus on reducing health inequalities, long term conditions, 

the wider determinants of health such as air quality, access to green spaces 
and leisure opportunities, and access to work and unemployment.   

 
 The following questions are proposed:- 
  

Page 126

Agenda Item 9



 
 Please answer once to let us know whether you agree or disagree and then 

tell us your top priority by selecting one statement only 
 

 Agree Disagree My top 
priority 

Improve health and quality of life for people in 
the poorest parts of Sefton – offering job 
skills, reducing worklessness 

   

Improve the quality of life and health of 
people living in the poorest parts of Sefton by 
encouraging people to stop smoking, reduce 
the amount of alcohol they drink, eat healthy 
food and take physical exercise 

   

Improve early access to health and wellbeing 
services for all people and in particular those 
living in the most disadvantaged areas 

   

Improve the mental health of people, 
encouraging people to take part in activities in 
their local community 

   

Support local people to improve their skills, 
participate in training, undertake volunteering 
and gain employment 

   

Working towards improving air quality in 
Sefton to reduce numbers of people with 
health conditions that this causes.  

   

Diagnose illness earlier, to prevent cancer, 
heart disease and stroke and threat these 
conditions sooner 

   

Identify people with long-term conditions 
earlier so they can receive better treatment, 
avoiding complications and stay in their home 
and the community longer 

   

Provide people with information and support 
to enable them to manage their own 
conditions wherever possible. 

   

Promote messages to include the benefits of 
breastfeeding, eating sensibly, drinking less 
alcohol, and easier access to regular physical 
activity, especially in the poorest areas 

   

Page 127

Agenda Item 9



People can obtain the right advice or go to the 
right place, first time, for treatment or 
diagnosis if they feel unwell 

   

People feel they are listened to when they 
give their views about health, care and 
wellbeing in Sefton 

   

Make sure that health, care and wellbeing 
services in Sefton complement each other 
and are joined-up 

   

 
4.6 Age Well and Die Well 
 
 This section will focus on the health needs of our older people and the issues 

that they face including frailty, hospital admissions and discharge, care and 
support needs, the needs of carers long term conditions and end of life 
support.   

 
 Please answer once to let us know whether you agree or disagree and then 

tell us your top priority by selecting one statement only 
 

 Agree Disagree My top 
priority 

support carers to ensure they can continue to 
care for their families 

   

Help more adults and older people to remain 
physically active 

   

Refocus some health services to focus 
attention on older people’s health issues 
(such as dementia, heart conditions, high 
blood pressure and cancer) 

   

Look at promoting services and lifestyles that 
allow our older people to remain in their 
homes and the community longer 

   

Support older people to remain healthier for 
longer by early diagnosis of dementia, heart 
conditions, high blood pressure and cancer, 
and treat these conditions earlier 

   

Reduce the number of older citizens who are 
injured through falls 

   

 

Page 128

Agenda Item 9



When older people are admitted to hospital 
they don’t spend more time than is necessary 
and that they are discharged as soon as it is 
safe to do so. 

   

People are supported to die well in a place of 
their choosing 

   

 
4.7 Free Text Box 
 
 Respondents will be able to tell us if there is anything else that they think is a 

priority for them by a free text box.  This will also give us some qualitative 
data which will be used in conjunction with the quantitative information which 
we collect:- 

 
 Please tell us here if you think there is anything missing from the list of 

statements above, and which you think is important to help keep the people 
of Sefton Healthy and Well. 

 
5. Next Steps 
 
 5.1 A stakeholder map has been developed to make sure that the 

consultation and engagement reaches as many people as possible.  
This will include those people with protected characteristics.  We will 
work with our partners, and in particular those in the voluntary, 
community and faith sectors, to give as many people as possible the 
opportunity to give us their views. 

 
 5.2 A communications plan is being developed to ensure a consistent 

approach to key messages from the JSNA and the Health and 
Wellbeing engagement and the concurrent engagement relating to the 
NHS Long Term Plan. 

 
 5.3 The information, views and opinions collected during the consultation 

and engagement process will be used to inform the Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy and other work within the Council.  The Clinical 
Commissioning Groups will also use the information to inform and 
develop their “Shaping Sefton” plan “which is being prepared in 
response to the NHS Long Term Plan, and will also compliment and 
support the delivery of the Sefton Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

 
6. Recommendations 
 
 6.1. Members of the Panel are asked to offer feedback on the proposals 

and draft questionnaire presented in this report and instruct on how 
the Health and Wellbeing Sub-Group should continue to engage in the 
light of its feedback and recommendations. 

Page 129

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of meeting held on Monday 15th March 2019
	5 Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity - Canal and River Trust Draft Vision
	Draft Vision

	6 Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity - 0-19 Integrated Service
	7 Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity - Transportation & Highway Infrastructure Services
	THI 2019 Questionnaire
	Questionnaire V May 19 - inc GDPR v2.vsd
	cover
	P1
	P2
	P3
	P4
	P5
	P6
	P7
	P8
	P9
	P10
	P11
	P12
	P13
	blankP14
	Equalities P15
	Equalities P16
	Equalities P17



	8 Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity - SEND Joint Commissioning Strategy - Co-production Framework and Engagement Process
	SEND Stakeholder Map
	SEND Strategy Engagement Framework
	SEND Co-production Quality Indicators

	9 Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity -Engagement to inform Sefton's Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2020-2025 - Update Report - Update Report (Report to follow electronically)



